
           
OFFICIAL AGENDA

TUESDAY February 24, 2026
Meeting Start Time: 9:00 a.m.

Board of County Commissioners
Yellowstone County, Montana

Ostlund Building
2825 3rd Ave N, Room 309

Billings, MT
8:45 a.m. Agenda Setting 

           

Pledge to the Flag: Moment of Silence: Minutes
REGULAR AGENDA

9:00 a.m. RECOGNITION

Kyle James Metra Administration 10 Years of Service
Dillon O’Fallon Detention Center 10 Years of Service

 

9:00 a.m. BID OPENING

a. Bid Opening for Central Avenue & 48th Street West Intersection Improvement  
b. Bid Opening for 5 Fifth Wheel Trucks for the Public Works Department

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON REGULAR, CONSENT AND FILED AGENDA ITEMS
 

PUBLIC WORKS

Resolution 26-11 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of Beaver Drive -
Board of Viewers will be Commissioner Chris White, Clerk and Recorder Jeff Martin, Lora
Mattox Transportation Planner and Jay Anderson Public Works Deputy Director

 

CLAIMS

 CONSENT AGENDA 

1. COMMISSIONERS  

a. Board Appointments - Dana Bishop, Jennifer Sayler, Brian Brown, George Warmer &
Nicholas Steen to the MetraPark Advisory Board

 

b. Board Openings - Updated List
 

 

2. FINANCE  

a. Request to Expend - Facilities - Cell Phone for New Maintenance Tech  
b. Disposition of Assets Miscellaneous Equipment  
c. BBWA RRGL Grant Sponsorship Request  
d. Finance Contract - Extension Building - Cucancic Construction  
e. Window Tint - Commissioners Board Room  



f. Change Order #2 - Bauer Construction - Metra Skybox Reno
 

 

3. GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS  

MOU with City of Laurel for GIS Services
 

 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES  

a. Health Equity Agreement for COBRA  
b. PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - Road and Bridge - 1 Appointment; I.T. - 3 Salary &

Other; Detention Facility - 2 Terminations; Youth Services Center - 1
Termination; Facilities - 1 Termination; Motor Vehicle - 1 Termination

 

 FILE ITEMS 

1. CLERK AND RECORDER  

Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District - January 2026
 

 

2. COMMISSIONERS  

Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2/12/26
 

 

3. FINANCE  

Detailed Cash Investment Report - January 2026
 

 

4. PUBLIC WORKS  

Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON COUNTY BUSINESS
*Public comment is an opportunity for individuals to address the Board, however, the Board cannot
engage in discussion or take action on items not properly noticed on the agenda.

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: February Recognition
Submitted By: Charri Victory

TOPIC:
Kyle James  Metra Administration 10 Years of Service
Dillon O’Fallon  Detention Center 10 Years of Service

BACKGROUND:
na

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
na



   
B.O.C.C. Regular a.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Bid Opening for Central Avenue & 48th Street West Intersection Improvement
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Bid Opening for Central Avenue & 48th Street West Intersection Improvement

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Refer to staff.



   
B.O.C.C. Regular b.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Bid Opening for Public Works Fifth Wheel Truck
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Bid Opening for 5 Fifth Wheel Trucks for the Public Works Department
 

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Refer to staff. 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Res. 26-11 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of Beaver Drive
Submitted For: Monica Plecker, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Jay Anderson, Deputy Public Works Director

TOPIC:
Resolution 26-11 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of Beaver Drive - Board of
Viewers will be Commissioner Chris White, Clerk and Recorder Jeff Martin, Lora Mattox Transportation
Planner and Jay Anderson Public Works Deputy Director

BACKGROUND:
See attached.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve.

Attachments
Res. 26-11_Board of Viewers_Combined 



Resolution No. 26-11 

Resolution to Appoint Board of Viewers for Abandonment of Beaver Lane  

1 of 2 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Resolution No. 26-11 

 

Resolution to Appoint Board of Viewers for Abandonment of Beaver Lane  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 7-14-2101, 7-14-2102 and 7-14-2103 of the Montana Code 

Annotated, a board of county commissioners has the authority to manage county roads within the 

county.  Pursuant to Section 7-14-2615 of the Montana Code Annotated, a board of county 

commissioners has the authority to abandon a county road after a public hearing. 

   

WHEREAS, Beaver Lane is a dedicated public road on the Plat of Zeiler Acreage Tracts. Plat of 

Zeiler Acreage Tracts. Doc. No.620908, filed on May 4, 1959, with the Yellowstone County 

Clerk and Recorder.  Exhibit 1 – Plat; Exhibit 2, Line Map; Exhibit 3 – Aerial Map.  The 

road is a dead end, approximately 260-feet long.  The road has not been constructed. Keith and 

Jerlyn Nokes, who own Tract 1 of Zeiler Acreage Tracts have a driveway on the right-of-way for 

the road that they use to access their land.  The Yellowstone County Board of County 

Commissioners has the authority to manage the road, including the authority to abandon the 

road. 

 

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2025, the Board received a petition from the Nokes to abandon 

Beaver Lane.  Exhibit 4 – Petition.  All the landowners who own land that abut the road the 

Nokes’ requested the Board abandon have agreed to the abandonment – George Nilson, Harold 

Zeiler Family Revocable Living Trust through Gloria Zeiler and Richard Zeiler Family 

Revocable Living Trust through Celesta Zeiler.  The Nokes would like the Board to abandon the 

road because it was never constructed and is not needed by the public.  The intent is to have the 

abandoned right-of-way aggregated into Tract 1 of Zeiler Acreage Tracts owned by the Nokes.  

The Board reviewed the petition.  The petition appears legally sufficient to appoint a Board of 

Viewers to investigate the proposed abandonment.   

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, 

 

The Yellowstone County Board of County Commissioners creates a Board of Viewers to 

investigate the proposed abandonment.  The Board appoints Chris White, a Yellowstone County 

Commissioner; Jeff Martin, the Yellowstone County Clerk and Recorder / Yellowstone County 

Surveyor; Lora Mattox, a Transportation Planner with the City of Billings / Yellowstone County 

Planning Department, and Jay Anderson, a Deputy Director with the Yellowstone County Public 

Works Department, to the Board of Viewers.  The Board of Viewers shall submit a report to the 

Board that makes a recommendation as to the proposed abandonment. 

 

After the Board of Viewers submits the report, the Board shall hold a public hearing on the 

proposed abandonment.  At the hearing, the Board shall receive comments on the proposed 

abandonment and consider the Board of Viewers’ Report and any comments on the proposed 

abandonment.  After the hearing, the Board may or may not abandon the road.  If the Board 

believes that it is in the best interest of the public to abandon the road, it shall pass a resolution of 

intent to abandon the road with conditions.  Once the Nokes’ have satisfied the conditions, the 



Resolution No. 26-11 

Resolution to Appoint Board of Viewers for Abandonment of Beaver Lane  

2 of 2 

Board shall pass a resolution that abandons the road.  If the Board believes it is not in the best 

interest of the public to abandon the road, it shall pass a resolution not to abandon the road.  

 

Passed and Adopted on the 24th day of February 2026. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY, MONTANA 

 

      

Mark Morse, Chair 

 

      

Michael J. Waters, Member    ATTEST: 

 

            

Chris White, Member     Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 

 

 

Attachments 

Exhibit 1 - Plat  

Exhibit 2 - Line Map 

Exhibit 3 - Aerial Map 

Exhibit 4 - Petition 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

    

 



janderson
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1 - Plat



Exhibit 2 – Line Map 

 

N
o
rth

 



Exhibit 3 – Aerial Map 

 

N
o
rth

 



janderson
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 4 - Petition















Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Scale: 1:743.71 Basemap: Cadastral Application Base Map

Summary

Primary Information
Property Category:  RP Subcategory:  n/a

Geocode:  03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000 Assessment Code:  000C036460

Primary Owner:
NOKES, KEITH & JERLYN
3692 WESTCLIFF AVE
LAUGHLIN, NV 89029-1906 
Note: See Owners section for all owners

Property Address:
 2202 E ROUTE 9 LN  

  BILLINGS, MT 59101 

 Certificate of Survey:  n/a  Legal Description:  ZEILER ACREAGE TRACTS, S24, T01 S, R25 E, Lot 1, 1969 
CHAMPIION 24X57 TITLE: M191991 ATTACHED TO REAL **DOR DETITLE**

Last Modified:  1/23/2026 20:29:16 PM

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 1 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

General Property Information
 Neighborhood:  203.006.3  Property Type:  Improved Property 

 Living Units:  1  Levy District:  03-1981UF-O23-UF

 Zoning:  n/a  Ownership:  100

LinkedProperty:  No linked properties exist for this property

Exemptions:  No exemptions exist for this property

Condo Ownership:
 General: n/a  Limited: n/a

Property Factors
Topography: n/a Fronting: n/a

Utilities: n/a Parking Type: n/a

Access: n/a Parking Quantity: n/a

Location: n/a Parking Proximity: n/a

Land Summary
Land Type: Acres: Value:

Grazing n/a n/a
Fallow n/a n/a
Irrigated n/a n/a
Continuous Crop n/a n/a
Wild Hay n/a n/a
Farmsite n/a n/a
ROW n/a n/a
NonQual Land n/a n/a
Total Ag Land n/a n/a
Total Forest Land n/a n/a
Total Market Land 1.034 n/a

Deed Information
Deed Date Book Page Recorded Date Document Number Document Type

10/15/2024 REF ONLEY 10/16/2024 4087839 Termination of Joint Tenancy by 
Death

10/15/2024 n/a n/a 10/15/2024 4087840 Warranty Deed
8/21/2024 n/a n/a 8/23/2024 4083302 Termination of Joint Tenancy by 

Death

Owners

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 2 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Party #1

Default Information: NOKES, KEITH & JERLYN
3692 WESTCLIFF AVE LAUGHLIN, NV 89029-1906

Ownership %: 100

Primary Owner: Yes

Interest Type: Joint Tenant w/Right of Survivorship

Last Modified: 8/7/2025 13:12:10 PM

Appraisals

Appraisal History
Tax Year Land Value Building Value Total Value Method

2025 124019 50700 174719 COST
2024 115564 43070 158634 COST
2023 115564 43070 158634 COST

Market Land

Market Land Item #1

Method: Acre Type: Primary Site

Width: n/a Depth: n/a

Square Feet: n/a Acres: 1.034

Class Code: 2201 Value: n/a

Dwellings

Dwelling #1

Dwelling Information

Dwelling Type Style Year Built
MH DW 1969

Residential Type: MH Style: DW
Year Built: 1969 Roof Material: 5 - Metal
Effective Year: 1970 Roof Type: 3 - Gable
Story Height: 1.0 Attic Type: 0 - None
Grade: L Exterior Walls: n/a
Class Code: 3501 Exterior Wall Finish: 5 - Maintenance Free Aluminum/Vinyl/Steel
Year Remodeled: n/a Degree Remodeled: n/a

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 3 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026
Mobile Home Details

Manufacturer: n/a Serial #: n/a
Width: n/a Length: n/a
Model: n/a

Basement Information

Foundation: 1 - Wooden or Masonry Piers/Posts Finished Area: n/a
Daylight: n/a Basement Type: 0 - None
Quality: n/a

Heating/Cooling Information

Type: Central System Type: 5 - Forced Air

Fuel Type: 3 - Gas Heated Area: n/a

Living Accomodations

Bedrooms: 4 Family Rooms: n/a

Full Baths: 2 Half Baths: n/a

Addl Fixtures: 3

Additional Information

Fire Places
Stories: n/a Stacks: n/a
Openings: n/a Prefab/Stove: 1

Garage Capacity: n/a Cost & Design: n/a

Flat Add: n/a % Complete: n/a

Description: n/a

Dwelling Ammenities

View: n/a Access: n/a

Area Used in Cost

Basement: n/a Addl Floors: n/a

First Floor: 1368 Second Floor: n/a

Half Story: n/a Unfinished Area: n/a

Attic: n/a SFLA: 1928

Depreciation Information

CDU: n/a Physical Condition: Poor (5)

Desirability
Property: Poor (5) Location: Fair (6)

Depreciation Calculation

Age: 54 Pct Good: 0.14

RCNLD: n/a

Additions / Other Features

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 4 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026
Lower Addtns First Second Third Area Year Cost
n/a 91 - Mobile Home Addition n/a n/a 560 n/a n/a

n/a 69 - Garage, Frame, Unfinished n/a n/a 744 n/a n/a

n/a 33 - Deck, Wood n/a n/a 128 n/a n/a

No additional features exist for this property

Other Buildings

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #1
Type: Residential Description: RRS1 - Shed, Frame

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1995

Grade: L Condition: Res Poor

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: 8 Length: 12
Size/Area: n/a Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #2
Type: Residential Description: RRS2 - Shed, residential, metal

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1995

Grade: L Condition: Res Fair

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: 8 Length: 10
Size/Area: n/a Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #3
Type: Residential Description: RRS2 - Shed, residential, metal

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1995

Grade: L Condition: Res Fair

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: 31 Length: 32
Size/Area: n/a Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 5 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #4
Type: Residential Description: RRT7 - Deck, covered patio

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1970

Grade: L Condition: Res Fair

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: n/a Length: n/a
Size/Area: 256 Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #5
Type: Residential Description: RRG3 - Garage, frame, detached, unfinished

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1981

Grade: 5 Condition: Res Fair

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: n/a Length: n/a
Size/Area: 528 Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #6
Type: Residential Description: AAQ1 - Quonset

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1998

Grade: A Condition: Res Average

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3501

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: 48 Length: 60
Size/Area: n/a Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Commercial

No commercial buildings exist for this parcel

Ag/Forest Land

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 6 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

No ag/forest land exists for this parcel

Conservation Easements

No conservation easements exist for this parcel

Disclaimer

The Montana State Library (MSL) provides this product/service for informational purposes only. MSL did not produce it for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, 
or surveying purposes. Data from disparate sources may not be in vertical alignment. Consumers of this information should review or consult the primary data 
and information sources to ascertain the viability of the information for their purposes. The MSL provides these data in good faith and in no event, shall be liable 
for any incorrect results or analysis, any lost profits and special, indirect or consequential damages to any party, arising out of or in connection with the use or the 
inability to use the data or the services provided. The MSL makes these data and services available as a convenience to the public, and for no other purpose. The 
MSL reserves the right to change or revise published data and/or services at any time.

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-07-05-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 7 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Scale: 1:5558.38 Basemap: Cadastral Application Base Map

Summary

Primary Information
Property Category:  RP Subcategory:  Agricultural and Timber Properties

Geocode:  03-0926-24-4-11-01-0000 Assessment Code:  000D008780

Primary Owner:
NILSON, GEORGE D
2050 EAST LN
BILLINGS, MT 59101-6382 
Note: See Owners section for all owners

Property Address:
 EAST LN  

  BILLINGS, MT 59101 

 Certificate of Survey:  n/a  Legal Description:  S24, T01 S, R25 E, S2NESE & SENWSE (LESS C/S 3004) 
29.00 AC (2000)

Last Modified:  6/21/2025 19:26:25 PM

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-11-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 1 / 4



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

General Property Information
 Neighborhood:  203.006.3  Property Type:  Vacant Land 

 Living Units:  n/a  Levy District:  03-1981UF-O23-UF

 Zoning:  n/a  Ownership:  100

LinkedProperty:  No linked properties exist for this property

Exemptions:  No exemptions exist for this property

Condo Ownership:
 General: n/a  Limited: n/a

Property Factors
Topography: n/a Fronting: n/a

Utilities: n/a Parking Type: n/a

Access: n/a Parking Quantity: n/a

Location: n/a Parking Proximity: n/a

Land Summary
Land Type: Acres: Value:

Grazing n/a n/a
Fallow n/a n/a
Irrigated 29 n/a
Continuous Crop n/a n/a
Wild Hay n/a n/a
Farmsite n/a n/a
ROW n/a n/a
NonQual Land n/a n/a
Total Ag Land 29 n/a
Total Forest Land n/a n/a
Total Market Land n/a n/a

Deed Information
Deed Date Book Page Recorded Date Document Number Document Type

Owners

Party #1

Default Information: NILSON, GEORGE D
2050 EAST LN BILLINGS, MT 59101-6382

Ownership %: 100

Primary Owner: Yes

Interest Type: Conversion

Last Modified: 11/6/2007 21:25:3 PM

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-11-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 2 / 4



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Appraisals

Appraisal History
Tax Year Land Value Building Value Total Value Method

2025 39594 n/a 39594 COST
2024 33128 n/a 33128 COST
2023 33128 n/a 33128 COST

Market Land

No market land exists for this parcel

Dwellings

No dwellings exist for this parcel

Other Buildings

No other buildings exist for this parcel

Commercial

No commercial buildings exist for this parcel

Ag/Forest Land

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-11-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 3 / 4



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Ag/Forest Land Item #1
Acre Type: I - Irrigated Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1101 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 4.424 Commodity: Alfalfa
Units: Tons/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 18.745 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Ag/Forest Land Item #2
Acre Type: I - Irrigated Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1101 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 4.425 Commodity: Alfalfa
Units: Tons/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 10.255 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Conservation Easements

No conservation easements exist for this parcel

Disclaimer

The Montana State Library (MSL) provides this product/service for informational purposes only. MSL did not produce it for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, 
or surveying purposes. Data from disparate sources may not be in vertical alignment. Consumers of this information should review or consult the primary data 
and information sources to ascertain the viability of the information for their purposes. The MSL provides these data in good faith and in no event, shall be liable 
for any incorrect results or analysis, any lost profits and special, indirect or consequential damages to any party, arising out of or in connection with the use or the 
inability to use the data or the services provided. The MSL makes these data and services available as a convenience to the public, and for no other purpose. The 
MSL reserves the right to change or revise published data and/or services at any time.

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-11-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 4 / 4



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Scale: 1:7427.09 Basemap: Cadastral Application Base Map

Summary

Primary Information
Property Category:  RP Subcategory:  Agricultural and Timber Properties

Geocode:  03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000 Assessment Code:  000D008810

Primary Owner:
ZEILER, HAROLD E OR GLORIA D CO-TRSTE
2424 EAST LN
BILLINGS, MT 59101-6355 
Note: See Owners section for all owners

Property Address:
 2424 EAST LN  

  BILLINGS, MT 59101 

 Certificate of Survey:  n/a  Legal Description:  S24, T01 S, R25 E, FRAC S2SE

Last Modified:  1/23/2026 10:6:31 AM

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 1 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

General Property Information
 Neighborhood:  203.006.3  Property Type:  Improved Property 

 Living Units:  n/a  Levy District:  03-1981UF-O23-UF

 Zoning:  n/a  Ownership:  100

LinkedProperty:  No linked properties exist for this property

Exemptions:  No exemptions exist for this property

Condo Ownership:
 General: n/a  Limited: n/a

Property Factors
Topography: n/a Fronting: n/a

Utilities: n/a Parking Type: n/a

Access: n/a Parking Quantity: n/a

Location: n/a Parking Proximity: n/a

Land Summary
Land Type: Acres: Value:

Grazing 7.481 n/a
Fallow n/a n/a
Irrigated 68.949 n/a
Continuous Crop n/a n/a
Wild Hay n/a n/a
Farmsite 1 n/a
ROW n/a n/a
NonQual Land n/a n/a
Total Ag Land 77.43 n/a
Total Forest Land n/a n/a
Total Market Land n/a n/a

Deed Information
Deed Date Book Page Recorded Date Document Number Document Type

7/2/1997 0018 81052 N/A n/a n/a
6/11/1997 0018 78228 N/A n/a n/a
6/11/1997 0018 78229 N/A n/a n/a

Owners

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 2 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Party #1

Default Information: ZEILER, HAROLD E OR GLORIA D CO-TRSTE
2424 EAST LN BILLINGS, MT 59101-6355

Ownership %: 100

Primary Owner: Yes

Interest Type: Conversion

Last Modified: 11/6/2007 21:25:3 PM

Party #2

Default Information: HAROLD E ZEILER FAMILY REVOC LVG TR
2424 EAST LN BILLINGS, MT 59101-6355

Ownership %: 100

Primary Owner: Yes

Interest Type: Conversion

Last Modified: 11/6/2007 21:25:3 PM

Appraisals

Appraisal History
Tax Year Land Value Building Value Total Value Method

2025 96563 41570 138133 COST
2024 80907 33080 113987 COST
2023 80907 33080 113987 COST

Market Land

No market land exists for this parcel

Dwellings

Dwelling #1

Dwelling Information

Dwelling Type Style Year Built
SFR 03 - Ranch 1920

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 3 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026
Residential Type: SFR Style: 03 - Ranch
Year Built: 1920 Roof Material: 10 - Asphalt Shingle
Effective Year: 1960 Roof Type: 3 - Gable
Story Height: 1.0 Attic Type: 0 - None
Grade: 3 Exterior Walls: 1 - Frame
Class Code: 3110 Exterior Wall Finish: 4 - Asbestos
Year Remodeled: n/a Degree Remodeled: n/a

Mobile Home Details

Manufacturer: n/a Serial #: n/a
Width: n/a Length: n/a
Model: n/a

Basement Information

Foundation: 2 - Concrete Finished Area: n/a
Daylight: N Basement Type: 0 - None
Quality: n/a

Heating/Cooling Information

Type: None System Type: 5 - Forced Air

Fuel Type: 3 - Gas Heated Area: n/a

Living Accomodations

Bedrooms: 1 Family Rooms: n/a

Full Baths: 1 Half Baths: n/a

Addl Fixtures: 2

Additional Information

Fire Places
Stories: n/a Stacks: n/a
Openings: n/a Prefab/Stove: n/a

Garage Capacity: n/a Cost & Design: n/a

Flat Add: n/a % Complete: n/a

Description: n/a

Dwelling Ammenities

View: n/a Access: n/a

Area Used in Cost

Basement: n/a Addl Floors: n/a

First Floor: 724 Second Floor: n/a

Half Story: n/a Unfinished Area: n/a

Attic: n/a SFLA: 724

Depreciation Information

CDU: n/a Physical Condition: Unsound (1)

Desirability
Property: Unsound (1) Location: Unsound (1)

Depreciation Calculation

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 4 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026
Age: 64 Pct Good: 0.14

RCNLD: n/a

Additions / Other Features

Lower Addtns First Second Third Area Year Cost
n/a 14 - Porch, Frame, Enclosed n/a n/a 100 n/a n/a

No additional features exist for this property

Other Buildings

Outbuilding/Yard Improvement #1
Type: Residential Description: RPA2 - Concrete

Quantity: 1 Year Built: 1980

Grade: A Condition: Res Poor

Functional: n/a Class Code: 3110

Dimensions

Width/Diameter: 6 Length: 9
Size/Area: n/a Height: n/a
Bushels: n/a Circumference: n/a

Commercial

No commercial buildings exist for this parcel

Ag/Forest Land

Ag/Forest Land Item #1
Acre Type: FSA - Farmsite on agricultural land Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 2001 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: n/a Commodity: N/A
Units: n/a

Valuation

Acres: 1 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 5 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Ag/Forest Land Item #2
Acre Type: G - Grazing Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1601 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 0.218 Commodity: Grazing Fee
Units: AUM/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 1.471 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Ag/Forest Land Item #3
Acre Type: G - Grazing Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1601 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 0.289 Commodity: Grazing Fee
Units: AUM/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 2.71 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Ag/Forest Land Item #4
Acre Type: G - Grazing Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1601 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 0.641 Commodity: Grazing Fee
Units: AUM/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 3.3 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Ag/Forest Land Item #5
Acre Type: I - Irrigated Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1101 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 3.947 Commodity: Alfalfa
Units: Tons/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 3.551 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 6 / 7



Cadastral Property Report

Tax Year: 2026

Ag/Forest Land Item #6
Acre Type: I - Irrigated Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1101 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 4.424 Commodity: Alfalfa
Units: Tons/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 64.282 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Ag/Forest Land Item #7
Acre Type: I - Irrigated Irrigation Type: n/a
Class Code: 1101 Timber Zone: n/a

Productivity

Quantity: 4.425 Commodity: Alfalfa
Units: Tons/Acre

Valuation

Acres: 1.116 Per Acre Value: n/a
Value: n/a

Conservation Easements

No conservation easements exist for this parcel

Disclaimer

The Montana State Library (MSL) provides this product/service for informational purposes only. MSL did not produce it for, nor is it suitable for legal, engineering, 
or surveying purposes. Data from disparate sources may not be in vertical alignment. Consumers of this information should review or consult the primary data 
and information sources to ascertain the viability of the information for their purposes. The MSL provides these data in good faith and in no event, shall be liable 
for any incorrect results or analysis, any lost profits and special, indirect or consequential damages to any party, arising out of or in connection with the use or the 
inability to use the data or the services provided. The MSL makes these data and services available as a convenience to the public, and for no other purpose. The 
MSL reserves the right to change or revise published data and/or services at any time.

https://svc.mt.gov/msl/cadastral/?page=Map&geocode=03-0926-24-4-01-01-0000&taxYear=2026
Referenced on 2/18/2026 7 / 7











   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Board Appointments
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Appointments - Dana Bishop, Jennifer Sayler, Brian Brown, George Warmer & Nicholas Steen to
the MetraPark Advisory Board

BACKGROUND:
See Attached.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign and Mail

Attachments
Nicholas Steen 
George Warmer 
Brian Brown 
Jennifer Sayler 
Dana Bishop 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular 1. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Board Openings
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Board Openings - Updated List
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Post

Attachments
Board Openings 



February 24, 2026 

LOCKWOOD FIRE DISTRICT #8 3 year 1 full to 5/1/29 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, March 26, 2026 

February 17, 2026 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 3 2 year 1 full to 12/31/26 

   CITY/COUNTY PLANNING: DIST 4 2 year 1 full to 12/31/26 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live AND own property within 

the boundaries of the district. To find which planning district you live in, please contact the City/County 

Planning Division at 247-8676. 

 

BROADVIEW CEMETERY 3 year 1 partial to 6/30/26 

BLUE CREEK FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year 2 full to 5/8/27 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #5 3 year 1 full to 5/1/28 

LAUREL FIRE DISTRICT #7  3 year 1 full to 5/1/28 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own property within the 

boundaries of the district. 

 

CONSOLIDATED ZONING COMMISSION 2 year 
                   1 full to 6/30/27 
                   1 partial to 6/30/26 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must live outside the city limits of Billings but within 4-1/2 

mile zoning boundary. 

 

LOCKWOOD PEDESTRIAN SAFETY DISTRICT ADV. 3 year                   1 partial to 12/31/27 

AREA II AGENCY ON AGING  1 year                   1 full to 6/30/26 

YELLOWSTONE ART MUSEUM 3 year                   1 full to 12/31/28 

BILLINGS PUBLIC LIBRARY 5 year                   1 full to 3/31/31 

 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 2 year                    1 full to 12/31/27 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must have professional expertise in history, planning, 

archaeology, architecture, or historic preservation-related disciplines. 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, March 19, 2026 

February 3, 2026 

LOCKWOOD URBAN TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 4 year             2 full to 5/2/28 

FUEGO FIRE SERVICE AREA 3 year                 1 full to 12/31/28 

 NOTE: To be eligible for the above special district boards, applicants must live OR own 

property within the boundaries of the district. 

 

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE  3 year                     1 full to 12/31/28 

 NOTE: Eligible applicants for the above board must live outside the incorporated limits of the City of 

Billings. 

 

APPLICATIONS FOR THE ABOVE POSITIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED 

UNTIL 5:00PM ON THURSDAY, March 5, 2026 

 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Request to Expend - Facilities - Cell Phone for New Maintenance Tech
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Request to Expend - Facilities - Cell Phone for New Maintenance Tech

BACKGROUND:
The Facilities Department is requesting Commissioners' approval for a new cell phone for the new
maintenance tech at YCDF. There is no price for buying the phone and the monthly cost is $36.99 per
month with a 2-year contract.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve request and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
RTE - Facilities Cell Phone 





   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Disposition of Assets - Miscellaneous Equipment
Submitted By: Anna Ullom, Senior Accountant

TOPIC:
Disposition of Assets Miscellaneous Equipment

BACKGROUND:
The Finance Department is requesting Commissioners approval to dispose of/recycle miscellaneous
equipment consisting of outdated computers, monitors, copiers, scanners, various other electronic
equipment and end-of-life equipment from various departments that are beyond economical repair. 
Most equipment is recycled rather than hauled to the landfill.  The I.T. Department inspects and
removes hard drives and wipes any memory from computers and copiers.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the request and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
Disposition of Assets 2.24.26 
Metra - Disposition of Assets Sheets 



Asset #         Description Serial Number Notes

41587 Panasonic Toughbook CF33me05VM 9LTTC21300

41613 Panasonic Toughbook CF33me05VM 9LTTC21362

41270 Panasonic Toughbook CF33me05VM

40806 NUC 7i5BNK 808200 / G6BN75100787

55219 Ice Machine Metra

55213 Infield Pump Metra

40498 Dell Precision 3510 7WWDQF2

40705 Dell Precision 3520 4H93GH2

40499 Dell Precision 3510 FNWDQF2

41056 Dell Precision 3510 9J0PMF2

40800 Dell Precision 3520 CRZR0N2

40799 Dell Precision 3520 FVZR0N2

41024 Dell Latitude E5570 JDGCJC2

41589 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21306

41610 Panasonic Toughbook CF33 (CF-33-ME-05VM) 9LTTC21357

41611 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21359

41631 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21396

41617 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21372

41581 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21330

41593 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC2139

41545 Dell OptiPlex 7070 DFDFSZ2

40798 Dell Precision 3520 3MZR0N2

40780 Lenovo ideapad FLEX 5-1570 MP1D74RY

41665 Dell Optiplex 3070 Micro XCTO 523YY23

40476 HP Officejet Pro X476dn MFP 40476

40338 NUC 5i5RYK G6RY536000WR

41135 OptiPlex 7050   BSP79T2

41643 OptiPlex 3070  7WQ9T13

XPS 8700  B50VZ72

HP s5000 Tower BV627AA#ABA

40676 Dell Latitude E5570 J99V0G2

41583 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21271

41597 Panasonic Toughbook CF33 (CF-33-ME-05VM) 9LTTC2125

41598 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21326

41623 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21382

41630 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21395

40320 HP LaserJet P3015 VND3G49621

41242 HP LaserJet M608 CNBCM418KD

40883 Dell OptiPlex 3050 7BPD1S2
38554 Brother Intellifax 2820
45240 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3QP2W2

45237 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3PYZV2
45249 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3KR2W2
45244 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J4Y10W2
45247 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J5120W2
45251 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro 95SH3W2

45250 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3LV2W2

45246 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J50R2W2

45245 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro BHB9FX2

45252 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J50T2W2

41570 Dell Optiplex 3070 HXRDH03

41986 Konica Minolta PC-210 printer A2XMWY2192107

45242 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3N60W2

45241 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro B37RG13

45243 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J3P90W2

45248 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro J52R2W2

41128 Loenovo T580 Thinkpad R90SPF67

40346 HP Printer PHGFC79954

39038 Zebra Label Printer TLP2844 41J121301035

41271 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9HTTC99174

41628 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21393

41609 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21356

41627 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33ME-05VM 9LTTC21390

40676 Dell Latitude E5570 J99V0G2

38793 HP LaserJet M602 CNBCD18101

40704 Dell Precision 3520 77H3GH2



Asset #         Description Serial Number Notes

41201 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro B8LWZV2

41268 Dell OptiPlex 3060 Micro 1JYKPY2

41172 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro 6RLMHV2

41771 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro 8HP4H63

41233 Dell OptiPlex 7060 Micro B8Y6DW2

41158 Dell Latitude 5420 87W8TG2

40493 Acer V226WL 22 Monitor 61101999385

41877 Dell OptiPlex 3080 Micro H5RXM83

31417 AT 37 TARGET FRAME missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

31418 AT 37 TARGET FRAME missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

31419 AT 37 TARGET FRAME missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

31420 TARGET REMOTE CONTROL TRANSMITTER missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

35056 HOSTAGE/NEG RESCUE PHONE missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

36236 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

36237 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

36238 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37113 PYTHON III RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37114 PYTHON III RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37115 PYTHON III RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37116 PYTHON III RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37264 PYTHON III Radar Units missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37265 PYTHON III Radar Units missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37266 PYTHON III Radar Units missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37267 PYTHON III Radar Units missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37596 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37597 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37598 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

37599 RADAR UNIT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

12483 YCSO CIVIL  CREDIT CARD MACHINE    missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

35535 PORTABLE RADIO missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

35535 PORTABLE RADIO missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

NO TAG PORTABLE RADIO missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

NO TAG PORTABLE RADIO missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40997 Dell Latitude 5420 Rugged CTO w/dock missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40998 Dell Latitude 5420 Rugged CTO w/dock missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40999 Dell Latitude 5420 Rugged CTO w/dock missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41982 Dell latitude 5420 Rugged Laptop missed on 4.22.25 agenda item
38854 HP Laser Jet P1102w Printer missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

33681 Chair missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

38735 POLYCOM HIGH DEF HDX 8000 VIDEO CONFERENCING EQUIPMENT missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

39790 Acer Monitor 32300457285 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40497 Dell 3150 Laptop CKBDQF2 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40369 Kyocera TASKalfa 6002i (EXT) W2Z6Y01817 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

38469 Fax Machine missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

44371 Panasonic Toughbook 7ATSA09930 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40850 Kyocera TaskAlpha 2552ci MFC W2V8204853 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41586 Panasonic Toughbook 9LTTC21295 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

39931 HP LaserJet 600 M602 CNDCGB81BB missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41596 Panasonic Toughbook 9LTTC21323 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

40632 HP LaserJet M605 CNDCJCR1P3 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41604 Panasonic Toughbook CF-33 9LTTC21337 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41614 Panasonic Toughbook CF33 (CF-33-ME-05VM) 9LTTC21368 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41594 Panasonic Toughbook CF33 (CF-33-ME-05VM) 9LTTC21320 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41621 Panasonic Toughbook CF33 (CF-33-ME-05VM) 9LTTC21378 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item

41103 Panasonic Toughbook CF54 D3 OOVM 6JTSA93369 missed on 4.22.25 agenda item
12769 Colortrac MP40 Scanner/ViewSonic 22" Monitor

38862 CANON CPIPF765 36 PLOTTER AAGW1430

40996 HP LaserJet Pro M404N Printer PHBC237639

41637 Dell Optiplex 3070 JD6CH13

37540 Fujitsu Fi-5120C Scanner 145109

40667 HP604N Hewlett Packard P CNBCHCK02S

41547 Dell OptiPlex 3070 Micro JGHR903

23146 56 SLOT STEEL ROLLER SHELVING FILING CABINET

41667 Dell Optiplex 3070 Micro XCTO 5236Z23

41664 Dell computer stand

41234 Dell Optiplex 4060 GWFKDW2



Asset #         Description Serial Number Notes

41751 Dell OptiPlex 3070 SFF XCTO- Microfilm Reader 2W5TQ53

41752 Dell OptiPlex 3070 SFF XCTO- Bev Wiley 2W5SQ53

41847 Dell OptiPlex 3080 SFF XCTO H5KZM83

41848 Dell OptiPlex 3080 SFF XCTO H5LYM83

41849 Dell OptiPlex 3080 SFF XCTO H5LXM83

41850 Dell OptiPlex 3080 Micro H5LMV83

41851 Dell OptiPlex 3080 SFF XCTO H5LWM83

41852 Dell OptiPlex 3080 SFF XCTO H5L0N83

37845 Kenmore employee owned Fridge purchased by YCO

38492 Fujitsu fi 6770 document SCANNER 22712

39028 FUJITSU FI-6130Z SCANNER

39001 BROTHERS MODEL 4100e FAX MACHINE

41974 Intel NUC817BEH Desktop Computer G6BE02800JRV

41164 Dell Computer - D. Jones 938CDV2

41260 HP 557dn LaserJet MXCCM6W08L























   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. c.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: 2026 DNRC RRG Project Grant Application
Submitted For: Russell Burton, Comptroller  Submitted By: Russell Burton, Comptroller

TOPIC:
BBWA RRGL Grant Sponsorship Request

BACKGROUND:
Billings Bench Water Association (BBWA) is preparing an application to the Montana DNRC
Renewable Resource Grant and Loan (RRGL) program. They are requesting county sponsorship. The
grant is for infrastructure improvements for the water system.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve

Attachments
BBWA Grant Sponsor Request 



February 18, 2026 

Jennifer, 

Billings Bench Water Association 
1111 Main Street 
PO Box 50150 
Billings, Mt 59105 
( 406) 259-6241 

Billings Bench Water Association is preparing an application to the Montana DNRC 
Renewable Resource Grant and Loan (RRGL) Program for a project titled Billings Bench 
Conveyance Efficiency Improvements. This project will focus on priority automation and 
monitoring upgrades within our conveyance system to improve water use efficiency, 
operational reliability, and the long-term performance of our infrastructure. 

Because Yellowstone County has previously sponsored successful RRGL applications for 
similar water infrastructure projects, as well as the RRGL PER grant for our Priority 
SCADA locations, we respectfully request the County's sponsorship again for this 
application cycle. 

The proposed project aligns closely with the RRGL program's eligibility criteria, 
particularly in advancing water use efficiency and modernizing existing water delivery 
systems. These improvements will enable more efficient water delivery, strengthen 
drought resilience, and enhance overall system management for agricultural producers 
throughout Yellowstone County. 

We really value Yellowstone County's partnership and continued support. We would be 
pleased to provide additional project details, share draft materials, or attend a meeting 
if helpful during your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Thank you! 

~~~ 
Secretary - Treasurer 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. d.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Finance Contract - Extension Building - Cucancic Construction
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Finance Contract - Extension Building - Cucancic Construction

BACKGROUND:
The Finance Department is requesting Commissioners' approval for a contract with Cucancic
Construction, Inc. for renovations of the Extension Building to provide an ADA bathroom, a large
training room, and new carpet in offices. The contract total is $70,170.00. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Sign contract and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
Cucancic Contract - Exetnsion Bldg 



1 
 

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR CONTRACT 

 
This Contract is entered into by and between Yellowstone County, Montana, herein referred to as 
“COUNTY”, and Cucancic Construction, Inc., herein referred to as “CONTRACTOR”, whose address 
is 7310 Entryway Dr., Billings, MT 59101. 
 
THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. SCOPE OF SERVICES: CONTRACTOR agrees to complete and perform the work or services for 
the Extension Building Renovation project in accordance with the plans and specifications 
attached and hereby incorporated as Exhibit A. This scope includes the base bid and additive 
alternates #1 and #2. Additive alternate #3 will not be included in the scope of work. 
 
2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: COUNTY hereby employs CONTRACTOR as an independent 
contractor to complete and perform the scope of services. Neither CONTRACTOR or its principals 
or employees are employees of COUNTY.  
 
3. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TIME OF PERFORMANCE: CONTRACTOR shall commence work upon 
approval of this Contract by both parties and shall complete the described work by April 21st, 2026. 
 
4. COMPENSTATION: For the satisfactory completion of the scope of services, COUNTY shall pay 
CONTRACTOR a total of $70,170.00. This total represents the base bid, additive alternate #1, and 
additive alternate #2. CONTRACTOR should submit invoices directly to COUNTY upon satisfactory 
completion of services for the period being invoiced. Any Change Orders for the project must be 
approved in writing by COUNTY prior to work being started. COUNTY shall pay invoices within 30 
days of invoice date. Retainage of 5% will be withheld for any progress payments made by 
CONTRACTOR. The fee will be returned to CONTRACTOR upon completion of the project and 
acceptance by COUNTY. 
 
5. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATION:  
 

1. CONTRACTOR has examined and reviewed Contract Documents and other related   
paperwork 

2. CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the 
general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance and 
furnishing of the work. 

3. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local laws and 
regulations that may affect cost, progress and furnishing of the work. 

4. CONTRACTOR has given COUNTY written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or 
discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents and that 
the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey the 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance of the scope of services. 

 
 
 



2 
 

6. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The Contract Documents, which comprise the entire agreement 
between COUNTY and CONTRACTOR, consist of the following: 
 

1. This agreement 
2. CONTRACTOR’s bid, dated December 31st, 2025. 
3. CONTRACTOR’s certificate of insurance and workers compensation coverage 
4. Exhibit A – Phase 2 Drawings 

 
7. WARRANTY: CONTRACTOR warrants that all services shall be performed in a professional 
manner.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it shall be liable for any breach of this warranty for a 
period of one (1) year from the time services are completed. 
 
8. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: This Contract contains the entire agreement between parties, 
and no statements or promises made by either party, or agents of either party, which are not 
contained in the written Contract, are valid or binding. This Contract may not be modified or altered 
except upon written agreement signed by both parties. Any subcontractor shall be bound by all of 
the terms and conditions of this Contract. 
 
9. INSURANCE: CONTRACTOR shall maintain at its sole cost and expense, commercial general 
liability insurance from an insurance carrier licensed to do business in the State of Montana in the 
amount of seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) for each occurrence (minimum) 
and one million five hundred thousand dollars ($1,500,000.00) aggregate. CONTRACTOR also 
agrees to maintain workers compensation insurance from an insurance carrier licensed to do 
business in the State of Montana. Proof of general liability and workers compensation insurance 
shall be provided to COUNTY at least ten (10) days prior to beginning work under this Contract. 
COUNTY must be listed as an additional insured on the general liability insurance certificate for this 
Contract. 
 
10. INDEMNIFICATION: CONTRACTOR agrees to waive all claims and recourse against COUNTY, 
including the right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, growing 
out of, or in any way connected with incidental to CONTRACTOR’s performance of this Contract 
except for liability arising out of concurrent or sole negligence of COUNTY or its officers, agents or 
employees. Further, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend COUNTY against all 
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses or liability arising out of CONTRACTORS’s negligent 
performance of this Contract except for liability arising out of the concurrent or sole negligence of 
COUNTY or its offices, agents or employees. 
 
11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: CONTRACTOR shall comply with applicable federal, state, and local 
laws, rules and regulations, including the Montana Human Rights Act, Civil Rights Act of 1964, The 
Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and the American with Disabilities Act of 1990. CONTRACTOR or 
their subcontractors agrees that the hiring of persons to perform the contract will be made on the 
basis of merit and qualification and there will be no discrimination based upon race, color, religion, 
creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by the 
person performing under the Contract. 
 
12. PERMITS: CONTRACTOR is responsible for obtaining any and all permits required to perform 
work under the Contract. 
 



3 
 

13. PREVAILING WAGE: All employees employed by CONTRACTOR or their subcontractor(s) in 
performance of this Contract which exceeds twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000.00) will be paid 
wages at rates as may be required by the laws of the State of Montana in accordance with the 
schedule of Montana Prevailing Wage Rates established by the Montana Department of Labor and 
Industry. 
 
Each CONTRACTOR (Prime and sub) must submit (through the prime CONTRACTOR) certified 
payrolls for each week from the time the project begins through completion. Certified payrolls must 
be numbered sequentially and submitted on a weekly basis whether or not work was performed. If 
no work was performed, CONTRACTOR shall note this on the payroll. 
 
14. PREFERENCE: CONTRACTOR agrees to give preference to the employment of bona fide 
Montana residents in compliance with MCA 18-2-403 (1). Pursuant to MCA 18-2-409, except for 
projects involving the expenditure of federal aid funds or where residency preference laws are 
specifically prohibited by federal law, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that at least 50% of the 
workers of the CONTRACTOR (including workers employed by subcontractors) working on the 
project shall be bona fide Montana Residents. 
 
15. PLACE OF PERFORMANCE, CONSTRUCTION, AND VENUE: Performance of this Contract is in 
Yellowstone County, Montana and venue for any litigation arising from performance of this Contract 
is the 13th Judicial District Court, Yellowstone County, Montana. This Contract shall be governed by 
the laws of the State of Montana. 
 
16. ATTORNEY FEES: In the event of litigation between CONTRACTOR and COUNTY, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reimbursement of court costs and reasonable attorney fees by the non-
prevailing party. 
 
17. SUSPENSION: Without terminating this Contract, COUNTY may suspend CONTRACTOR’s 
services following written notice. On the suspension date specified in the notice, CONTRACTOR 
shall have ceased its services in an orderly manner. CONTRACTOR shall be reimbursed for all 
reasonable costs incurred and unpaid for services rendered through the suspension date specified 
in the notice, but in no case will CONTRACTOR be paid for services rendered after the date of such 
suspension. If resumption of CONTRACTOR’s services requires any waiver or change in this 
Contract, any such waiver or change shall require the written agreement of all parties, and the 
writing shall be attached as an addendum to this Contract. 
 
18. TERMINATION: COUNTY reserves the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, at any 
time by providing thirty (30) days written notice to CONTRACTOR. On the termination date specified 
in the notice, CONTRACTOR shall have ceased its services in an orderly manner. If a new contractor 
is retained to, or COUNTY will itself complete the services, CONTRACTOR will fully cooperate with 
COUNTY in preparing the new contractor or COUNTY to take over completion of services on the 
specified termination date. CONTRACTOR will be reimbursed for all reasonable costs incurred and 
unpaid for services rendered in conformance with this Contract through the date of termination 
specified in COUNTY’s notice to CONTRACTOR. In no case will CONTRACTOR be paid for services 
rendered after the date of termination. 
 



4 
 

In the event of a material breach of this Contract by COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR shall have the right 
to terminate this Contract thirty (30) days after written notice to COUNTY specifying such material 
breach, unless COUNTY has cured such material breach within said period. 
 
This Contract may be terminated without cause by either party. In that event, the party seeking to 
terminate this Contract must give ninety (90) days written notice to the other party of the intent to 
terminate the Contract. 
 
 
 
In witness whereof, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR have signed this Contract in duplicate. One 
counterpart each will be delivered to COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. All portions of the Contract 
Documents have been signed, initialed or identified by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR. 
 
This Contract will be effective February 24th, 2026. 
 
 
COUNTY:      CONTRACTOR 
Yellowstone County     Cucancic Construction, Inc. 
Billings, MT 59101     Billings, MT 59101 
 
 
________________________________________  ________________________________________  
Mark Morse, Chair     Jaime Writesel 
Board of County Commissioners   Vice President  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________     
Jeff Martin, Clerk and Recorder 

















   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. e.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Window Tint - Commissioners Board Room
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Window Tint - Commissioners Board Room

BACKGROUND:
The Finance department is requesting Commissioners' approval to install window tinting on the
windows of the Commissioners' board room in the Ostlund Building. The cost of this service is
$5,450.00. There are sufficient funds in the project budget to accomodate this service.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 2. f.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Change Order #2 - Bauer Construction - Metra Skybox Reno
Submitted For: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent 
Submitted By: Matt Kessler, Purchasing Agent

TOPIC:
Change Order #2 - Bauer Construction - Metra Skybox Reno
 

BACKGROUND:
MetraPark is requesting Commissioners' approval for a change order with Bauer Construction for the
Metra Skybox renovation to add paint to the corridor and lobby area. The additional cost is $14,995.20,
which would bring the total contract value to $193,682.20. There are sufficient project funds to cover
this change in scope.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve and return a copy to Finance.

Attachments
COR 2 Corridor and Lobby Paint Add 



3333 2nd Ave N. Suite 240

Billings, MT. 59101 Date: 2/19/2026

406-781-1622

timw@bauermt.com

Customer: Yellowstone County Job Name:

Contact: Matt Kessler Job Address:

Phone: 406-256-2717

Email: mkessler@yellowstonecountymt.gov

Division # Scope Company

Division #1 General Conditions Bauer Construction Inc. 

Division #9 Painting Haney & Sons Painting

OH&P @ 10%

Total Amount     

Alternate Add to Total 

Amount if Accepted 

Tim Williams
General Contractor 

Architect 

Owner

Title Date

Title Date

Project Manager 2/19/2026
Title Date 

COR #02

Prepared By: Tim Williams

Metra SkyBox Refresh

308 6th Ave N

Billings, MT 59101

Price is Subject to Change Depending on Scope Changes

Change Order Request #1 Floor and Ceiling Adds 

Total Amount

14,995.00$                                                

1,363.20$                                                  

1,320.00$                                                  

12,312.00$                                                

2,950.00$                                                  

Scope of Work Description:

Division 01

- Project Management and subcontractor management 

- Removal and reinstall of pictures

Division 09

- Paint walls in Corridor (324 & 304), Lobby (301), Reception (301.1), and stair well all walls to be P1 Bedrock 9563, all brick to be painted P2 Outer 

space 6251. 

- Paint 18 door frames as P4 City scape 7067

Alternate:

- Paint all wood base in area as P4 City Scape 7067

Exclusions/Notes

• If approved, add this price to main contract amount. 

• All other work not explicitly stated on this estimate is excluded.



EXTENT OF ACCENT PAINT OR WALL FINISHES

FINISH PLAN LEGEND
ROOM NAME AND NUMBER

FLOOR FINISH 'RT1' (SEE KEYNOTE 'A3')

FLOOR FINISH 'RT1'

FINISH TAG

A8## # INTERIOR ELEVATION CALLOUT AND 
DIRECTION OF ELEVATION VIEW

NAME
101

FINISH TAGS DISPLAYED IN GROUPING ON FINISH PLAN REPRESENT 
MAJORITY ROOM FINISH SELECTIONS. ORDER OF GROUPING DEFINED 
IN EXAMPLE BELOW:

MAJORITY WALL FINISH
MAJORITY BASE FINISH
MAJORITY FLOOR FINISH

XX###

XX###

XX###
XX###

XX###

NOT IN SCOPE

FLOOR FINISH 'EX1'

GENERAL FINISH NOTES
A.

B.
C.

D.

E.

F.

G.
H.
I.
J.

K.

L.

M.

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS IN FIELD. EXISTING 
CONDITIONS OF WINDOWS AND OTHER BUILDING ELEMENTS MAY 
VARY. IF MEASUREMENTS IN FIELD DEVIATE FROM THE DIMENSIONS 
SHOWN WITHIN THESE DOCUMENTS BY GREATER THAN 6" OR AFFECT 
DESIGN INTENT COORDINATE AND NOTIFY THE PROJECT ARCHITECT 
PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK. 
FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO FABRICATION.
ALL PRODUCTS ARE TO BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S 
INSTRUCTIONS, USING MANUFACTURER'S ADHESIVES, TOOLS, AND 
METHODS.
REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL FINISH MATERIAL PRODUCT 
INFORMATION.
COORDINATE ALL OWNER FURNISHED EQUIPMENT, ACCESSORIES, 
AND FURNITURE WITH OWNER AND/OR OWNER ’S VENDOR.
ALL FLOOR TRANSITIONS ARE TO OCCUR DIRECTLY BENEATH DOORS 
OR CENTERED IN OPENING UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
ALL FLOOR TRANSITIONS ARE TO BE ADA COMPLIANT.
ALL GYPSUM WALLS TO BE PAINTED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
ALL CEILINGS IN SUITES 1-10 TO BE 'AC1' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
ALL METAL ACCESS PANELS, COVER PLATES, VENTS, AND GRILLES TO 
BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE SURFACE IT IS LOCATED ON.
ALL PLASTIC LAMINATE COUNTERTOPS ARE TO BE 'PL1' WITH 1.5" 
BEVELED EDGE.
ALL PAINTED SURFACES TO RECIEVE A MINIMUM OF ONE COAT 
PRIMER, TWO FINISH COATS. USE PRIMERS RECOMENDED FOR EACH 
SUBSTRATE. FINISH COATS AS FOLLOWS: CONCRETE, MASONRY AND 
DRYWALL- SHERWIN WILLIAMS PROMAR 200, EG-SHEL FINISH. METAL 
TRIM- SHERWIN WILLIAMS PRO INDUSTRIAL ACRYLIC, SEMI-GLOSS 
FINISH. METAL CEILING GRID TO HAVE EG-SHEL FINISH. WOOD- 
SHERWIN WILLIMAS SCUFF TUFF INTERIOR WATERBASED ENAMEL, 
SEMI-GLOSS FINISH.
BASIS OF DESIGN LISTED. ALTERNATE MATERIALS NEED PRIOR 
APPROVAL BY ARCHITECT AND OWNER.

SUITE 1
327

SUITE 2
328

SUITE 4
330

SUITE 5
331

SUITE 6
332

SUITE 7
333

SUITE 8
334

SUITE 9
335

SUITE 10
336

MEN
302

IT CLOSET
312

WOMEN
326

ACCOUNTING
318

ACCOUNTING
319

STORAGE
320

STAIR
323

STAIR
306

KITCHEN
307

STORAGE
309

EVENT
COORDINATOR

310

OPERATIONS
DIRECTOR

308

MARKETING
313

MARKETING
316

ASSISTANT
GM
315

GM
314

CONFERENCE/SETTLE
322

JANITOR
301.2

Room
301.3

HOSPITALITY
303

BAR
305

CORRIDOR
324

RECEPTION
301.1

LOBBY
301

COMP.
TROLLER

321

OPEN
OFFICE

317

OPEN
OFFICE

311

CLOSET
304.1

ACCESS
337

CORRIDOR
304

OPEN TO
BELOW

OPEN TO
BELOW

P1
WDB1
RT1

P1
WDB1
RT1

P1
WDB1
RT1

P2
P2

P2
P2

P2
P2

P2

P2
P2

P2

EX1
EX1
RT1

EX1
EX1
RT1

EX1
EX1
RT1

EX1
EX1
RT1

A1

A2

1'-6" 10'-5" 1'-6"

1'
-6

"
22

'-6
"

1'
-6

"

1
4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

1

1

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3 3

3

3

3

3

3

3

A2

P2

A3

A3

A3

A3

A2

A2

A2

A2

A2

A2

A2

A2

P2

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

P1
WDB1
RT1
1

1

A501 2

W
C

1

W
C

1
W

C
1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

W
C

1

WC1
WC1

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

A4

5

A501 2
SIM

A501

2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

A501 2
SIM

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

6

8

7

9

OPEN TO 
BEYOND

PL1

WALL COVERING 'WC1' 
TO BE ON FRONT AND 
BACK OF PONY WALL.

3'
-6

 1
/2

"

WC1

WOOD CAP 5-1/4"W X 
1/2"D X 41"H. PAINT 'P4'.

3
A501

______________

WALLCOVERING, 
SEE ELEVATION

PLASTIC LAMINATE W/ 
1/4" BEVELED EDGE, 

SEE ELEVATION

AL
IG

N

1'-3"

1"

1 
1/

2"

600S200-54 @ 16"

SIMPSON RCK5.5, 3 EA STUD W/ 2- 
5/8"Ø TITEN SCREW ANCHORS 

EMBEDDED INTO EXIST 
THICKENED SLAB AREA 3" 

MINIMUM AT HIGH RIB. GC TO 
CONFIRM THICKENED SLAB AREA

EXIST SLAB ON 
METAL DECK

EXIST W BEAM 
BELOW

MIN
1 3/4"

3'
-6

 1
/2

"

600ST162-54 TOP AND 
BOT W/ #8 SCREWS 
TRACK TO EA STUD

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

F.

REFERENCE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION 
REQUIREMENTS.
PROTECT ALL EXISTING ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL, ANY OTHER 
EQUIPMENT, COVERS, AND WIRING, ETC... TO REMAIN. REPLACE ANY 
DAMAGED ITEM WITH NEW TO MATCH EXISTING.
VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND COORDINATE ALL 
DEMOLITION WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION.
WHETHER SPECIFICALLY INDICATED OR NOT, REMOVE PORTION OF 
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE WORK 
INDICATED AND PREP EXISTING CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN FOR 
NEW CONSTRUCTION.
EXPECT TO CAREFULLY REMOVE OR DISASSEMBLE VARIOUS ITEMS 
SO ADJACENT ITEMS AND FINISHES THAT ARE EXISTING TO REMAIN 
ARE NOT DAMAGED. PROPERLY REPAIR/REPLACE DAMAGED ITEMS 
AND FINISHES WITH NEW TO MATCH EXISTING.
COORDINATE WITH OWNER FOR ANY REMOVED OR DEMOLISHED 
ITEMS TO BE RETURNED TO THE OWNER.

GENERAL DEMOLITION NOTES

REVISIONS

10/22/2025 4:05:48 PM

FINISH PLANS,
SCHEDULES,
ELEVATIONS &
DETAILS

A501
  |  Project# YC25_METBOX  |  L:\YellowstoneCounty\MetraPark\YC25_METBOX\BIMCAD\Revit

10.22.2025

©  2025     |     ALL  RIGHTS  RESERVED

CONSTRUCTION
DOCUMENTS

M
ET

R
A

PA
R

K
 S

K
YB

O
X 

R
EF

R
ES

H
YE

LL
O

W
ST

O
N

E 
C

O
U

N
TY

30
8 

6T
H

 A
VE

 N
, B

IL
LI

N
G

S 
M

T,
 5

91
01

PROJ# | YC25_METBOX
DESIGNED BY | MACKENZIE
DRAWN BY | WISCOMB
REVIEWED BY | MACKENZIE

# KEYNOTES
1 HANDRAILS IN THIS ROOM TO BE PAINTED 'P3'
2 REMOVE EXISTING CEILING TILES, REPLACE WITH 'AC1'. PAINT

EXISTING GRID 'P5'.
3 GC TO DETERMINE 'TR2' PROFILE REQUIRED TO ACCOMODATE

EXISTING FLOORING.
4 USE 'TR1' AT STAIR NOSING.
5 MODIFY BAR TO BE 30"H. REUSE EXISTING COUNTERTOP
6 CREATE SOLID SURFACE SILL 'SS1' CAP AT WINDOW.
7 USE 'TR1' NOSING AT TOP STAIR ONLY.
8 EXISTING BUILT IN BAR TO REMAIN.
9 PATCH AND REPAIR WALL AS NEEDED.
A1 ADD ALTERNATE #1: FINISH STAIRS AND LANDING WITH RUBBER

TREADS, RISERS - SEE 'STR1', PAINT EXISTING STRINGERS 'P2'. GC
TO CONFIRM PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION IF INCLUDED IN
THIS PROJECT.

A2 ADD ALTERNATE #2: PAINT EXISTING CABINETS 'P4'. LEAVE
COUNTERTOP EXISTING. GC TO CONFIRM PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION IF INCLUDED IN THIS PROJECT.

A3 ADD ALTERNATE #3: 'FT1' FLOORING IN CORRIDOR AND LOBBY.
REUSE EXISTING BASE, DO NOT PAINT. GC TO CONFIRM PRIOR TO
START OF CONSTRUCTION IF INCLUDED IN THIS PROJECT.

A4 ADD ALTERNATE #4: REPLACE CEILING GRID IN LIEU OF PAINTING
CEILING GRID. GC TO CONFIRM PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION IF INCLUDED IN THIS PROJECT.

MATERIALS LIST
ITEM NO PRODUCT TYPE MANUFACTURER DESCRIPTION COLOR SIZE NOTES

BASE
WDB1 WOOD BASE PAINT EXISTING BASE 'P4'

CEILING
AC1 ACOUSTIC CEILING ARMSTRONG FINE-FISSURED HIGH NRC-1755 BL-TECH BLACK 2' X 4' X 7/8"

FLOOR
RT1 RESILIENT FLOORING PATCRAFT REMOVE 1417V NEUTRAL MIX 00550 12" X 24", 5 MM THICK BIRCK INSTALLATION METHOD. GLUE DOWN WITH

MANUFACTUER'S RECOMMENDED ADHESIVE.
GENERAL

EX1 EXISTING TO REMAIN
MILLWORK

PL1 PLASTIC LAMINATE FORMICA TINTED PAPER TERRAZZO 8812
SS1 SOLID SURFACE CORIAN USED AT WINDOW SILL DOVE 3" x 3" X 1/2" THICKNESS 90 DEGREE SILL WITH EASED EDGES

TRANSITIONS
STR1 STAIR COMPONETS (ALL

NOSING, TREAD, RISER)
JOHNSONITE ANGLEFIT RUBBER STAIR TREADS W/

INTEGRATED RISER FOR THE
VISUALLY IMPAIRED

71-STORM CLOUD SIZE AND NOSING PROFILE REQUIRED
FOR COMPLETE INSTALLATION

INSTALL MATCHING RUBBER FLOOR TILES AT
LANDING

TR1 TRANSITION PROFILE FUTURA LVT 341 NO LIP STAIR NOSING ETCHED ALUMINUM 5MM LVT FOR OUTSIDE STAIR NOSE
TR2 TRANSITION PROFILE JOHNSONITE SLIMLINE REDUCER STRIP 71-STORM CLOUD SEE DRAWINGS

WALL
P1 PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS TYPICAL WALL PAINT BEDROCK 9563
P2 PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS ACCENT WALL PAINT OUTERSPACE 6251
P3 PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS HANDRAIL PAINT MINDFUL GRAY 7016
P4 PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS BASE, CABINET, WOOD CAP PAINT CITYSCAPE 7067
P5 PAINT SHERWIN WILLIAMS METAL GRID PAINT INKWELL 6992

WC1 WALLCOVERING MOMENTUM TRANQUILITY WC LEAD 2ATR-32 54" W X 3/16" THICK INSTALLATION METHOD: NON-REVERSE HANG.
RANDOM MATCH. NO REPEAT.

 1/8" = 1'-0"A501

1 SECOND FLOOR FINISH PLAN

NORTH REF

 1/4" = 1'-0"A501

2 TYPICAL SUITE - EAST
 1" = 1'-0"A501

3 TYPICAL BAR COUNTER DETAIL

twill
Polygon

twill
Callout
Limit of area to receive new paint 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: MOU with City of Laurel for GIS Services
Submitted By: Derek Yeager

TOPIC:
MOU with City of Laurel for GIS Services
 

BACKGROUND:
This MOU is between Yellowstone County and the City of Laurel for the purposes of establishing a
cooperative relationship and limited reimbursement of services as it regards the assembling and
distribution of various GIS data sets that are mutually advantageous for the purposes of record keeping
and display. Currently, the City of Laurel has limited GIS capacity and data sets are often encountered
to be not yet constructed or existing or, older and inaccurate as a result of missing data reporting
criteria. County GIS maintains similar agreements with the City of Billings for similar purposes so as to
have continuity in information and data set accuracy and relevancy to both parties benefit. This
agreement was already previously executed by the City of Laurel in September 2025. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval of the MOU. 

Attachments
GIS Laurel MOU 













   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Health Equity Agreement for COBRA
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Health Equity Agreement for COBRA

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
Health Equity Agreement for COBRA 



. 
.._ l 

Health Equity· 
Order Form 

Employer: 
Yellowstone County 
217 M 27th Street, Room 106 
PO Box 35041 
Billings, MT 59107 

Effective Date•: 1/1/2026 
Initial Tenn End Date: 12/3112028 

Services: 
',er\ iu: N ame l·c.: I }pc 
COBRA Admin Fee 

Takeover of Existing Additional Service 
COBRA Participants Fee 

COBRA Open Additional Service 
Enrollment Fee 

COBRA Open Set Up Fee 
Enrollment 

Terms and Conditions: 

I cc 

Payment Method: ACH Debit 
Payment Terms: Within 30 days of receipt of invoice 
Service Charge on Overdue Amounts: 2% Per Month 

Description :,.t,i~~"'%f .. _..· 

$0.65 PEPM Per Eligible Per Month 

$10 .00 Acquisition and integration of existing COBRA participant 
information including the production of new monthly 
payment invoices, tracking the remainder of the eligibility 
period, and providing 24/7 access to participant 
information via IVR, Internet, and toll-free participant 
services support. One-time fee per takeover processed. 

$15.00 Standard Service Open Enrollment: WW will manage 
adding, updating or terminating plans; carrier and billing 
updates; and will produce and mail an updated premium 
statement to Qualified Beneficiaries and COBRA 
Continuants announcing the applicable COBRA premium 
change for the Employer's plan(s)' next determination 
period . WW updates, prints, and mails OE notifications on 
behalf of the Employer, up to 7 sheets of paper ( double-
sided), to Qualified Beneficiaries and COBRA 
Continuants (to the extent requested by Employer). WW 
will provide carrier and billing updates. Postage and 
additional printing fees may apply in some situations and 
will be disclosed to the Employer. Fee billed per OE 
packet mailed. 

$150.00 A per-plan year open enrollment setup fee will be 
assessed. 

Yellowstone County 
Page I • Document Generated September 22, 2025 



Health Equity~ 
• This Order Form is subject to HQY 's General Terms and Conditions of Service that may be viewed at 

https :/iresources.healtheguity.com/Documents/Employer/General Terms and Conditions All Accounts .pdf, and all 
terms defined therein shall have the same meaning in this Order Form unless otherwise specified herein . 

• •This Order Form shall be effective as of 1/1 /2026 (unless this Order Form is incomplete or does not match our 
records). Billing shall commence upon start of Service(s) or next billing period following the effective date, whichever 
is later. 

Yellowstone County 
Page 2 - Document Generated September 22, 2025 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular 4. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: PARS
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
PERSONNEL ACTION REPORTS - Road and Bridge - 1 Appointment; I.T. - 3 Salary &
Other; Detention Facility - 2 Terminations; Youth Services Center - 1 Termination; Facilities - 1
Termination; Motor Vehicle - 1 Termination

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve. 

Attachments
PARS 
PAR1 





















   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Board Minutes
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Board Minutes - Yellowstone Conservation District - January 2026
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
Yellowstone Conservation Board Minutes 



 

 

YELLOWSTONE CONSERVATION DISTRICT                                                                                                                              
PO Box 80888, Billings MT 59108   1670 48th St. W  Suite 2,  Billings, MT 59106                                                                                                   
Phone: 406.690.9326     email:  livie@mt.gov 

 
YELLOWSTONE CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Minutes 
January 15, 2026 

1670 48th St. West Suite #2, Billings MT 59106 
1:00 pm 

 
 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chad Sedgwick – Chair, Brad Kraft – Vice-Chair, Leroy Gabel, Jackie Haaland, 

             Bryan Mothershead, Stacey Robinson  

          

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:    None 

 

NON-BOARD PRESENT:    LaVerne Ivie - YCD;  Chris White – Yellowstone County Commissioner; 

          Seanna Torske, Zoe Craft – NRCS; Shannon Blackburn – FWP; 

          Yellowstone River CD Water Reservation applicants:  Wade Keller & Brandon Keller 

         Virtually:  Crystal White – YCD/PF/NRCS; Anthony Sammantara - Extension 

                 Others:  Jason Weinschmidt; Don Sasse  

 

                                                                                                                                            

Chair Sedgwick called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm  

    Roll Call - After the introductions, Chair Sedgwick informed attendees: All issues will be addressed to the Chair;  

public comments are always welcome but wait until the issue is addressed on the agenda, ask to be recognized 

by the chair and then limit comments to 3 minutes; no action will be taken on any item not on the agenda.  

 

Agenda Changes: None 

 

Minutes:  Kraft made a motion to approve November 18, 2025, Minutes as written and reviewed, second by Robinson, motion passed.   

 

Board member absences:  None 

 

2026 Election of Officers:  Mothershead made a motion to keep the current slate of officers in place, second by Robinson, 

motion passed. 

 

310’s  

• Applications, Emergencies, Complaints & Violations:   

- YE-05-26 – Par Montana, Dry Creek -  Supervisor Kraft provided an overview of the project as inspected 

by himself, Ivie, Par MT representatives and Ronni Tallerico on Jan. 14, 2026.  The refinery is constructing a 

rail yard. The yard will be used for storage of loaded and unloaded rail cars of refinery products or crude 

respectively.  

   The land on which the rail yard will be constructed will need to be leveled and compacted to meet rail 

construction standards. This will involve placing a substantial amount of fill to raise certain lower elevation 

areas and removing soil from certain higher elevation areas.  The rail yard will cross Dry Creek and several 

small areas of “low quality” wetlands. The culvert containing Dry Creek is undersized and in poor shape, it will 

be replaced with new culverts that will support the full load of the rail lines and the rail cars and an open 

channel. The replacement culverts and open channel creek bed will be sized to ensure no rise, since Dry Creek 

is considered a floodway. The flow path of the existing culvert is unknown.   Board discussion and decision:  

Robinson made a motion to declare YE-05-26 a ‘Non-Project’ because the water body is a drain ditch from an 

adjacent business and not a perennial flowing stream, nor does it drain into the Yellowstone River.  Second to 

the motion by Kraft, motion passed. 

- Jason Kleinschmidt – inquiry whether recreational gold prospecting on the Yellowstone River requires applicant 

to obtain a 310 permit.  Jason explained his plans to use a small, portable sluice box operated from the 



 

 

riverbank with a bilge pump powered by a lithium-ion battery.  The activity would involve minimal water usage 

and no chemicals, with discharge directly back into the river.    The board was assured that accessing the site 

will be through public access sites and will be below the high water mark with landowner permission obtained if 

needed.  Board decision:  Kraft made a motion for YCD to send a letter addressed to Mr. Kleinschmidt 

indicating the project does not meet the parameters of a 310 project and is for recreational purposes so 

therefore will not require a 310 permit, second by Mothershead, motion passed. 

 

 Other 310 Issues & Projects 

- Yellowstone River CD Council – Gabel did not have anything new to report from the Council.  Ivie reported she 

is working with the planning group for a summer river tour. 

- 310 Survey – the Board collectively filled out the 310 survey noting they rarely issue penalties but agree a 

tiered fee structure with higher maximum amounts would be useful, particularly for repeat offenders. 

 

BUSINESS MEETING 

• Old Business  

- Yellowstone River CD Water Reservations 10 year review – The edited report was finalized today with Kraft 

making a motion to submit to DNRC, second by Haaland, motion passed. 

• New Business  

- YCD Supervisor appointment to the Beartooth RC&D Board – Robinson made a motion to install Bryan 

Mothershead as YCD’s representative, second by Haaland, motion passed. 

- Yellowstone River Water Reservation Applications submitted to YCD: 
-  Brandon Keller – YE-01-26 – Application to pump 357.8 acre-ft from the Yellowstone River to sprinkler 
irrigate 178.9 acres.  Brandon provided an overview of his proposed project.  Board decision: Kraft made a 
motion to accept YE-01-26 and request assistance from DNRC to assign a water rights contractor to 
determine if some or all the project is outside of the original public notice area for Yellowstone Conservation 
District, second by Robinson, motion passed. 
- Wade Keller – YE-02-26 - Application to pump 1063.8 acre-ft from the Yellowstone River to sprinkler 
irrigate 531.9 acres.  Wade provided an overview of his proposed project.  Board decision: Robinson made 
a motion to accept YE-02-26 and request assistance from DNRC to assign a water rights contractor to 
determine if some or all the project is outside of the original public notice area for Yellowstone Conservation 
District, second by Mothershead, motion passed. 

• T-Report   

o November & December T-Reports:  Kraft made a motion to accept November and December Treasurer’s reports as 

submitted and reviewed, second  by Mothershead, motion passed. 

- GoDaddy subscription renewals – Supervisors reviewed the GoDaddy invoices that were paid from Ivie’s personal 

account. Robinson made a motion to approve reimbursement to Ivie for $556.21, second by Mothershead, motion 

passed. 

o Dues & Donations requests:  

- Yellowstone River Parks Association – Gabel made a motion to donate $500 to YRPA, second by Robinson, motion 

passed. 

- Beartooth RC&D – Gabel made a motion to pay $275 to Beartooth RC&D for the 2026 membership dues, second 

by Mothershead, motion passed. 

Travel & Meetings: none presented 

  

Standing Committee Reports  

• Westend Reservoirs – Robinson reported that the interim Parks and  Director could not attend today’s meeting 

but plans to attend in Feb. or March.   

- Robinson noted the grading package at the reservoirs has been approved to increase to 95%, coordination 

issues remain with the city, particularly regarding fish placement and water levels.  Robinson discussed the need 

for FWP to be involved at this stage if there is to be a fisheries component.  The group discussed challenges 

with the project’s progress, including the departure of Deb, the former Public Works Director, and the need for 

better coordination between various stakeholders to move the project forward. 

- The most recent delineation for the reservoirs area will be included in YCD’s quarterly report to DNRC. 

- White mentioned she updated the YCD website to include new information related to the reservoirs project 

under education. 



 

 

• Pollinator Fair grant applications – Haaland and White reported the NACD grant is currently in a waiting period 

until February.  As a backup, a DNRC grant is being developed.  The pollinator fair team met in December to go 

over the budget and logistics for the event.  White has updated the YCD website to include this year’s event.  

YCD will need to increase the amount of liability insurance to comply with the City’s requirements.  Ivie is working 

with our insurance provider to add a larger amount.  White discussed marketing plans, including newsletter blasts. 

 

Partner/Agency Reports 

• YCD Administrator Report – sent to Supervisors prior to the meeting.  

• Partner Biologist Report – White participated throughout the meeting. 

• Army Corps of Engineers – unable to attend meeting 

• Beartooth RC&D – no current report 

• DNRC – CDB report emailed to supervisors  

• Fish, Wildlife & Parks – Blackburn reported on various projects FWP is working on. 

• NRCS – Zoe Craft 

o Shared information on upcoming events including Ladies Ag Night and the Soil Health Symposium. 

o Gayle Berry is the new NRCS State Conservationist 

o CSP has gone away from enhancements, focused on practices for this signup 

o Regenerative Pilot Program – work with NRCS staff, partners or TSP to conduct a whole farm assessment. 

o The board will work with Zoe to schedule the Local Work Group meeting in Feb. or March 

o Seanna Torske – reported on personnel changes in the FSA office 

• Yellowstone County 

o Yellowstone County Commissioner – Commissioner White provided an overview of where the county offices 

will be located:  Courts and County attorney’s offices will remain in the County Courthouse; with other 

administrative county offices the County Commissioners are moving to the new Ostlund Administration 

building.  Elections will be relocated to the METRA grounds. 

-  As we all know there is an immediate need for a larger jail in Yellowstone County.  Currently there are 671 

inmates in a jail that has a capacity of 434 inmates.  The commissioners are currently working on running two 

levies.  The short term facility works exactly for which it was designed but not to house long term criminals. 

- YCD was invited to tour the current facility to which they readily agreed. 

o Yellowstone Co. Extension – Sammartano reported that the office has been moved to 3rd Ave. N.  with plenty 

of room for parking. 

- The Winter Ag series was held Jan. 13 with a very large crowd in attendance 

- Working with YCD on the Pollinator Fair 

o Yellowstone Co. Floodplain – Ronni Tallerico unable to attend meeting 

o Yellowstone Co. Weed Department – Joe Lockwood unable to attend meeting 

 

• Unscheduled Matters:   

- The office received a framed picture of the magazine cover Leroy Gabel appeared on.  It will be presented to 

Gabel when he is back in Montana. 

- Proposed Data Center at Broadview is a hot topic of discussion around Billings and the surrounding area.  

Commissioner White stated the County has no land use regulations so the county will not be involved.  All agreed 

development of such a facility brings many challenges but on the positive side  will increase taxes collected by 

the county and will employ dozens of people in an area that does not offer a lot of employment opportunities. 

• Public comments – none 

• Next YCD Board Meeting – Due to the YCD Administrator going in for surgery, the next board meeting might be held in 

February or delayed until March. 

• Robinson motion to adjourn the meeting at 2:35 pm 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________   

Chad Sedgwick, Chair                                     LaVerne Ivie, YCD Administrator 

 



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2/12/26
Submitted By: Erika Guy

TOPIC:
Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2/12/26
 

BACKGROUND:
See Attached

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File

Attachments
Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2/12/26 











   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Detailed Cash Investment Report
Submitted By: Teri Reitz, Board Clerk

TOPIC:
Detailed Cash Investment Report - January 2026
 

BACKGROUND:
See attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Place to file. 

Attachments
January Detailed Cash Investment Report 



INVESTMENT TYPE AMOUNT % INTEREST RATE

1. Cash on Hand 489,274.72 0.16% N/A
2. Bank Accounts & Gov MM 13,287,841.02 4.43% Varies

3. U.S. Gov't Securities 161,444,133.91 53.78% .75 - 5.1%
4. STIP 125,000,000.00 41.64% 3.964%

TOTAL 300,221,249.65 100.00%

AVERAGE
# OF INTEREST INVESTABLE

DAYS EARNED CASH YIELD
July-25 31 1,065,199 349,258,352 3.59%
August-25 31 942,302 320,615,063 3.46%

September-25 30 939,027 303,721,259 3.76%
October-25 31 824,497 262,725,820 3.70%
November-25 30 820,551 281,544,160 3.55%
December-25 31 741,117 339,992,735 2.57%
January-26 31 1,396,422 337,356,387 4.87%
February-26 28 0 0 #DIV/0!
March-26 31 0 0 #DIV/0!
April-26 30 0 0 #DIV/0!
May-26 31 0 0 #DIV/0!
June-26 30 0 0 #DIV/0!

TOTAL  Y-T-D 365 6,729,114 184,839,347 3.64% YTD AVE

DETAILED CASH INVESTMENT REPORT

January, 2026

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

1. Cash on Hand
0.16%

2. Bank Accounts & 
Gov MM
4.43%

3. U.S. Gov't 
Securities

53.78%

4. STIP
41.64%

MONTH-END PORTFOLIO MIX
Investment Pool

1



MARKET TREND

A comparison of Treasury yields the from prior month and prior year:

YIELD Last year

01/31/26 12/31/25 CHANGE 1/31/2025

90 day 3.67 3.67 0.00 4.31

1 year 3.48 3.48 0.00 4.17

2 year 3.52 3.47 0.05 4.22

3 year 3.60 3.55 0.05 4.27

5 year 3.79 3.73 0.06 4.36

MARKET CONDITIONS

Rates held steady this month. 

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

The pool had two investments mature with very low yield and 

one was purchased as replacement. 

Respectfully submitted,

Jen Jones

Yellowstone County Finance Director

INVESTMENT NARRATIVE

January, 2026

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

2



    YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

INVESTMENT DETAIL

January, 2026

DEPOSITORY FACE/    UNAMORTIZED YIELD/

INVESTMENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENT MATURITY PRINCIPAL PREMIUM/ ACCRUED INVESTMENT EFFECTIVE PURCHASE COUPON COUPON INTEREST

TYPE INSTITUTION DATE TERM DATE AMOUNT (DISCOUNT) INTEREST BALANCE RATE PRICE RATE DATES COLLECTIONS Notes Ref. #

-------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------- -------------- -------------------- ------------------------ ---------------------- ----------------------- --------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- --------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- --------- -------------------

FHLMC D.A. DAVIDSON 01/05/21 5 Yrs 01/05/26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.550% 100.000000 0.550% JAN/JULY 8,250.00 (b) 3134GXJX3

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 07/22/21 4.5 Yrs 01/22/26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.000% 100.000000 1.000% JAN/JULY 15,000.00 (b) 3130AN3T5

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 02/24/21 5 Yrs 02/24/26 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 0.750% 100.000000 0.750% FEB/AUG (b) 3130ALCV4

FHLB BUCHANAN CAP 05/18/21 5 Yrs 05/18/26 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% MAY/NOV 1(b) 3130AMAW2

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 05/27/21 5 Yrs 05/27/26 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 1.750% 100.000000 1.750% MAY/NOV 2(b) 3130AMG22

FHLB BUCHANAN CAP 07/15/21 5 Yrs 07/15/26 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 2.500% 100.000000 2.500% QTRLY 15,000.28 4(b) 3130AMZS4

FFC BUCHANAN CAP 09/01/23 3 Yrs 09/01/26 7,000,000.00 (5,326.09) 0.00 6,994,673.91 4.750% 0.999239 4.750% MAR/SEPT (f) 3133EPUW3

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 10/27/25 1 Yrs 10/27/26 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 3.500% 1.000000 3.500% APR/OCT (f) 3133ETL62

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 12/07/23 3 Yrs 12/07/26 5,000,000.00 (1,400.00) 0.00 4,998,600.00 4.385% 0.999720 4.375% JUNE/DEC (f) 3133EPK79

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 03/10/22 5 Yrs 03/10/27 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% MAR/SEPT 6(b) 3130AR3M1

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 07/23/24 3 Yrs 07/23/27 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.250% 100.000000 4.250% JAN/JULY 63,750.00 (f) 3133ERMB4

FFC BUCHANAN CAP 11/15/23 4 Yrs 11/15/27 5,000,000.00 (11,000.00) 0.00 4,989,000.00 4.686% 0.997800 4.625% MAY/NOV (f) 3133EPC60

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 12/09/25 2 Yrs 12/09/27 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.500% 100.000000 3.500% JUNE/DEC (f) 3133ET3GO

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 12/12/23 4 Yrs 12/28/27 6,000,000.00 (395,740.00) 0.00 5,604,260.00 4.550% 0.934043 0.950% JUNE/DEC (d) 3135GA7GO

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 04/12/24 4 Yrs 04/12/28 4,000,000.00 (21,680.00) 0.00 3,978,320.00 4.650% 0.994580 4.500% APR/OCT (f) 3133ERAX9

FHLMC BUCHANAN CAP 11/06/25 3 Yrs 11/06/28 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.800% 100.000000 3.800% MAY/NOV 28 3134HB3W9

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 11/13/23 5 Yrs 11/13/28 5,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000,000.00 4.625% 100.000000 4.625% MAY/NOV (f) 3133EPC45

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 11/24/25 3 Yrs 11/24/28 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.870% 100.000000 3.870% MAY/NOV (h) 3133ETZ34

FFC  D.A. DAVIDSON 12/15/23 5 Yrs 12/15/28 3,000,000.00 (4,020.00) 0.00 2,995,980.00 4.275% 0.998660 4.250% JUNE/DEC (f) 3133EPN50

FHLB BUCHANAN CAP 03/15/24 5 Yrs 03/13/29 3,000,000.00 (1,950.00) 0.00 2,998,050.00 5.010% 0.999350 5.000% MAR/SEPT (h) 3130BOJA8

FHLB BUCHANAN CAP 04/30/24 5 Yrs 04/26/29 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 5.100% 100.000000 5.100% APR/OCT (a) 3130B16G7

FFC BUCHANAN CAP 04/30/24 5 Yrs 04/30/29 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.750% 100.000000 4.750% APR/OCT 16(f) 3133ERDH1

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 04/07/25 4.5 Yrs 08/22/29 4,000,000.00 (24,000.00) 0.00 3,976,000.00 4.125% 100.000000 4.000% FEB/AUG 18 3135GAUB5

FFC D.A. DAVIDSON 08/27/25 4 Yrs 08/27/29 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% FEB/AUG 22 3133ETVC8

FHLMC D.A. DAVIDSON 09/06/24 5 Yrs 09/06/29 4,000,000.00 (32,000.00) 0.00 3,968,000.00 4.180% 0.992000 4.000% MAR/SEPT 7 3134HAJF1

FHLB BUCHANAN CAP 09/12/24 5 Yrs 09/12/29 2,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,500,000.00 4.010% 100.000000 4.010% MAR/SEPT 9 3130B2NT8

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 09/26/24 5 Yrs 09/12/29 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.750% 100.000000 3.750% MAR/SEPT 11 3130B2V77

FFC RBC 09/24/25 4 Yrs 09/24/29 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.900% 100.000000 3.900% MAR/SEPT  (h) 3133ETYX9

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 09/25/24 5 Yrs 09/25/29 5,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 5,000,000.00 3.875% 100.000000 3.875% MAR/SEPT 12 3130B2T21

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 09/27/24 5 Yrs 09/27/29 6,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 6,000,000.00 3.650% 100.000000 3.650% MAR/SEPT 13 3130B2U45

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 10/04/24 5 Yrs 10/02/29 3,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,500,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% APR/OCT 14 3130B32XO

FHLMC D.A. DAVIDSON 10/03/24 5 Yrs 10/03/29 4,000,000.00 (20,000.00) 0.00 3,980,000.00 4.110% 0.995000 4.000% APR/OCT 15 3134HAPX5

FHLMC D.A. DAVIDSON 04/16/25 4.5 Yrs 10/10/29 3,000,000.00 (30,000.00) 0.00 2,970,000.00 4.270% 0.990000 4.030% APR/OCT 19 3134HAPK3

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 10/15/25 4 Yrs 10/15/29 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% APR/OCT 26 3136GAXC8

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 02/27/25 5 Yrs 02/27/30 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 5.000% 100.000000 5.000% FEB/AUG (l) 3130B55H7

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 04/10/25 5 Yrs 04/10/30 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 4.550% 100.000000 4.550% APR/OCT 17 3130B5SW9

FFC RBC 05/06/25 5 Yrs 05/06/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.430% 100.000000 4.430% MAY/NOV 17 3133ETFU6

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 09/18/25 4.75 Yrs 06/18/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% MAR/SEPT 24 3136GAT74

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 07/14/25 5 Yrs 07/11/30 3,500,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,500,000.00 4.200% 100.000000 4.200% JAN/JULY 72,275.00 14 3130B6Z82

FHLMC D.A. DAVIDSON 09/10/25 5 Yrs 09/10/30 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 4.300% 100.000000 4.300% MAR/SEPT 23 (d) 3136GAR76

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 09/23/25 5 Yrs 09/11/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% MAR/SEPT 26 3130B7UA0

FNMA BUCHANAN CAP 09/18/25 5 Yrs 09/18/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 3.875% 100.000000 3.875% MAR/SEPT 25 3136GATA7

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 10/07/25 5 Yrs 10/07/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% APR/OCT 27 3136GAWH8

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 10/07/25 5 Yrs 10/07/30 3,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00 4.000% 100.000000 4.000% APR/OCT 26 3130B7ZA5

FHLB D.A. DAVIDSON 11/05/25 5 Yrs 11/06/30 3,500,000.00 (8,750.00) 0.00 3,491,250.00 3.930% 0.997500 3.875% MAY/NOV 23 3136GC2Q7

FNMA D.A. DAVIDSON 01/14/26 5 Yrs 01/14/31 4,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 4,000,000.00 3.875% 100.000000 3.875% JAN/JULY 29 3136GCEL59

STIP STATE OF MONTANA VAR 125,000,000.00 125,000,000.00 3.964% 506,920.56

GOV MM/ BANK ACCOUNTS DAILY 13,287,841.02 13,287,841.02 Varies  80,005.77

(11,361.83) Fees-WFB-Curr Mo

3



    YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

INVESTMENT DETAIL

January, 2026

DEPOSITORY FACE/    UNAMORTIZED YIELD/

INVESTMENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENT MATURITY PRINCIPAL PREMIUM/ ACCRUED INVESTMENT EFFECTIVE PURCHASE COUPON COUPON INTEREST

TYPE INSTITUTION DATE TERM DATE AMOUNT (DISCOUNT) INTEREST BALANCE RATE PRICE RATE DATES COLLECTIONS Notes Ref. #

-------------------- ------------------------------- ---------------------- -------------- -------------------- ------------------------ ---------------------- ----------------------- --------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- --------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- --------- -------------------

CASH ON HAND 489,274.72 489,274.72 N/A

------------------------ ---------------------- ----------------------- --------------------------- ---------------------------

TOTAL INVESTABLE CASH: 300,777,115.74 (555,866.09) 0.00 300,221,249.65 749,839.78 Ties to Treas Report Col O

============= ============ ============= =============== =============== 749,839.78

cross foot 300,221,249.65 0.00

0.00

From daily activity 300,221,249.65 Col K

0.00

0.54 161,444,133.91

0.42 125,000,000.00

Call feature: a) one-time b) quarterly  c) monthly d) semi-annual  e) annual f) non-callable g) one quarterly call and then continuous h) one annual call and then continuous i) 9 month no call then quarterly j) 1.5 yr no call then quarterly 0.05 13,777,115.74

  k) 2 year no call then continuous l) one year no call then annual 1.00 300,221,249.65

Note 1 - STEP at .625% until 5/18/23, .75% to 11/18/23, 1.00% to 5/18/24, 1.25% to 11/18/24, 1.50% to 5/18/25, 2.00% to 11/18/25, 3.00% to 5/18/26 YTM 1.189%

Note 2 - STEP at .50% until 11/27/21, .60% to 5/27/22, .70% to 11/27/22, .80% to 5/27/23, .90% to 11/27/23, 1.00% to 5/27/24, 1.25% to 11/27/24, 1.50% to 5/27/25, 1.75% to 11/27/25, 2.00% to 5/27/26 YTM 1.093%

Note 4 - STEP at .50% until 10/15/21, increasing by 5 bp each quarter until 4/15/24, then going to 1.125 to 7/15/24, 1.25% to 10/15/24, to 1.375% to 1/15/24-increasing by .125% until 10/15/25, to 2.00% until 1/15/26, 2.50% to 4/15/26 and 3.00 to 7/15/26 YTM 1.20%

Note 6 - STEP at 2.00% until 3/10/24, 2.50% to 3/10/25, 3.00% to 3/10/26, 4% to 9/10/26, 6.00% to 3/10/27 YTM 2.859%

Note 7 - No call until 3/6/25, then quarterly thereafter until maturity.

Note 8 -No call 6 months, then continuous.

Note 9 - one-time call only on 3/12/26.

Note 10 - one-time call only on 9/12/25.

Note 11 - one-time call only on 3/12/27.

Note 12 - No call 2 years, then quarterly until maturity.

Note 13 - one-time call only on 9/27/27.

Note 14 - No call 6 months, then quarterly.

Note 15 - No call 3 months, then quarterly.

Note 16 - this was purchased at a slight premium of $8,970.00.  To follow both conservatism and materiality under GAAP, the County has chosen to recognize the entire premium in this first interest payment, and set the yield to the coupon rate.

Note 18- No call 4 months, then quarterly

Note 19- No call 1 year, then quarterly

Note 20- No call 3 months, then monthly

Note 21- continuous call

Note 22- No call 2 years, then anytime.

Note 23- No call 6 months, then semi-annually

Note 24- No call 9 months, then annual

Note 25- One-time call 9.18.26

Note 26- No call 1 year, then annual

Note 27- No call 1 year, then 10/7/26 and 10/27/27 only

Note 28- One-time call 8.6.26

Note 29- No call 2 years, then semi-annually

Note on Agencies purchased at a discount.

Yellowstone County maintains the practice of utilizing an effective rate on these types of purchases that excludes the discount amount paid at maturity.  This is due to materiality and a more accurate recognition of accrued interest in periods before maturity date.

  The only exception to this practice will be for the FNMA due 12/28/27, which includes a material discount of $791,340 at the time of purchase.  This balance will be captured in proportionate share every 6 months to match interest payments, until maturity.

  This purchase allows the pool to gain an effective yield of 4.56% vs. the stated rate on the agency of .95%.

4



Jul 375,774.83

Aug 861,634.64

Sep 1,462,847.27

Oct 1,060,552.50

Nov 726,649.46

Dec 906,361.88

Jan 749,839.78

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

YTD 6,143,660.36

Proj 4,431,000        

L/Y 11,907,802      

4%

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL
January, 2026

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

$10,000,000

$11,000,000

$12,000,000

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD Proj L/Y

375,775
861,635

1,462,847
1,060,553

726,649

906,362

749,840

6,143,660

4,431,000

11,907,802

INTEREST COLLECTIONS

For Fiscal Year 2026

5



Days in ACCR INT ACCR INT INTEREST INTEREST DAILY CASH AVE RATE

MO YR Month Beg of Month End of Month CHANGE COLLECTED EARNED BALANCE OF RETURN

7 23 31 805,282 1,532,061 726,779 214,248 941,027 281,913,169 3.93%

8 23 31 1,532,061 1,344,608 (187,453) 1,077,818 890,365 266,625,901 3.93%

9 23 30 1,344,608 1,380,522 35,914 890,673 926,587 252,288,462 4.47%

10 23 31 1,380,522 1,435,671 55,149 586,797 641,946 239,467,106 3.16%

11 23 30 1,435,671 1,959,761 524,090 410,594 934,684 299,482,374 3.80%

12 23 31 1,959,761 2,103,465 143,704 1,111,911 1,255,615 350,553,325 4.22%

1 24 31 2,103,465 2,406,668 303,203 866,905 1,170,108 322,399,420 4.27%

2 24 29 2,406,668 2,173,492 (233,176) 1,250,497 1,017,321 305,883,826 4.19%

3 24 31 2,173,492 1,954,243 (219,249) 1,269,440 1,050,191 295,362,747 4.19%

4 24 30 1,954,243 2,064,982 110,739 886,080 996,819 285,536,194 4.25%

5 24 31 2,064,982 2,112,045 47,063 1,012,620 1,059,683 305,671,912 4.08%

6 24 30 2,112,045 1,451,792 (660,253) 1,828,756 1,168,503 325,892,052 4.36%

FY24 366 11,406,339 12,052,849 294,256,374 4.10%

7 24 31 1,451,792 2,178,906 727,114 351,878 1,078,992 294,837,015 4.31%

8 24 31 2,178,906 2,485,825 306,919 670,249 977,168 275,119,850 4.18%

9 24 30 2,485,825 1,959,347 (526,478) 1,446,682 920,204 265,892,311 4.21%

10 24 31 1,959,347 1,627,201 (332,146) 1,183,471 851,325 260,017,454 3.85%

11 24 30 1,627,201 1,853,966 226,765 681,797 908,562 310,527,407 3.56%

12 24 31 1,853,966 2,300,683 446,717 774,652 1,221,369 358,211,822 4.01%

1 25 31 2,300,683 2,515,616 214,933 913,590 1,128,523 334,924,682 3.97%

2 25 28 2,515,616 2,538,941 23,325 961,242 984,567 318,405,255 4.03%

3 25 31 2,538,941 2,014,020 (524,921) 1,570,798 1,045,877 301,894,966 4.08%

4 25 30 2,014,020 1,743,798 (270,222) 1,237,037 966,815 287,785,926 4.09%

5 25 31 1,743,798 1,868,899 125,101 881,308 1,006,409 297,512,425 3.98%

6 25 30 1,868,899 1,789,617 (79,282) 1,235,098 1,155,816 387,767,863 3.63%

FY25 365 11,907,802 12,245,627 307,741,415 3.98%

7 25 31 1,789,617 2,479,041 689,424 375,775 1,065,199 349,258,352 3.59%

8 25 31 2,479,041 2,559,708 80,667 861,635 942,302 320,615,063 3.46%

9 25 30 2,559,708 2,035,888 (523,820) 1,462,847 939,027 303,721,259 3.76%

10 25 31 2,035,888 1,799,832 (236,056) 1,060,553 824,497 262,725,820 3.70%

11 25 30 1,799,832 1,893,434 93,602 726,949 820,551 281,544,160 3.55%

12 25 31 1,893,434 1,728,189 (165,245) 906,362 741,117 339,992,735 2.57%

1 26 31 1,728,189 2,374,771 646,582 749,840 1,396,422 337,356,387 4.87%

2 26 28 2,374,771 (2,374,771) (2,374,771) #DIV/0!

3 26 31 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

4 26 30 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

5 26 31 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

6 26 30 0 0 0 #DIV/0!

FY26 365 6,143,960 4,354,343 313,601,968 1.39%

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

January, 2026

INTEREST EARNINGS COMPUTATION (3 YR REVIEW)

6



FY24 FY25 FY26

J 281,913,169 294,837,015 349,258,352

A 266,625,901 275,119,850 320,615,063

S 252,288,462 265,892,311 303,721,259

O 239,467,106 260,017,454 262,725,820

N 299,482,374 310,527,407 281,544,160

D 350,553,325 358,211,822 339,992,735

J 322,399,420 334,924,682 337,356,387

F 305,883,826 318,405,255 0

M 295,362,747 301,894,966 0

A 285,536,194 287,785,926 0

M 305,671,912 297,512,425 0

J 325,892,052 387,767,863 0

FY24 FY25 FY26

J 941,027 1,078,992 1,065,199

A 890,365 977,168 942,302

S 926,587 920,204 939,027

O 641,946 851,325 824,497

N 934,684 908,562 820,551

D 1,255,615 1,221,369 741,117

J 1,170,108 1,128,523 1,396,422

F 1,017,321 984,567 0

M 1,050,191 1,045,877 0

A 996,819 966,815 0

M 1,059,683 1,006,409 0

J 1,168,503 1,155,816 0
12,052,849 12,245,627 6,729,115

FY24 FY25 FY26

J 3.93% 4.31% 3.59%

A 3.93% 4.18% 3.46%

S 4.47% 4.21% 3.76%

O 3.16% 3.85% 3.70%

N 3.80% 3.56% 3.55%

D 4.22% 4.01% 2.57%

J 4.27% 3.97% 4.87%

F 4.19% 4.03% #DIV/0!

M 4.19% 4.08% #DIV/0!

A 4.25% 4.09% #DIV/0!

M 4.08% 3.98% #DIV/0!

J 4.36% 3.63% #DIV/0!

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

January, 2026

COMPARISON GRAPHS (3 YR REVIEW)

$100,000,000

$150,000,000

$200,000,000

$250,000,000

$300,000,000

$350,000,000

$400,000,000

$450,000,000

J A S O N D J F M A M J

AVERAGE INVESTABLE CASH

FY24

FY25

FY26

For Fiscal Years '24-'26

0

200,000

400,000

600,000

800,000

1,000,000

1,200,000

1,400,000

J A S O N D J F M A M J

INTEREST EARNINGS

FY24

FY25

FY26

For Fiscal Years '24-26

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

J A S O N D J F M A M J

INVESTMENT YIELD

FY24

FY25

FY26

For Fiscal Years '24-'26

7



NOTE 1 Combined TOTAL

Fund 7775 Investment Daily Net INTEREST

Date Activity Activity Activity Activity Activity Activity Balance Seg Acct-Non STIP Value  Yield Interest Interest EARNED

POOL SD7-Laurel ELEM POOL SD7-Laurel ELEM POOL SD7

Beg

Bal 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00

1 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00 4.0017914   16,884.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,884.27

2 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00 3.9768491   16,779.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,779.03

3 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00 3.9768491   16,779.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,779.03

4 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00 3.9768491   16,779.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,779.03

5 154,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 154,000,000.00 4.1422964   17,477.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,477.09

6 (3,000,000.00) 151,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 151,000,000.00 4.0901754   16,921.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,921.00

7 151,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 151,000,000.00 3.9850607   16,486.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,486.14

8 (8,000,000.00) 143,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 143,000,000.00 3.9642543   15,531.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,531.19

9 (3,000,000.00) 140,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 140,000,000.00 3.9611468   15,193.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,193.44

10 140,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 140,000,000.00 3.9611468   15,193.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,193.44

11 140,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 140,000,000.00 3.9611468   15,193.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,193.44

12 (3,000,000.00) 137,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 137,000,000.00 3.9569218   14,852.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,852.01

13 137,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 137,000,000.00 4.0933041   15,363.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 15,363.91

14 (4,000,000.00) 133,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,000,000.00 3.9576278   14,420.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,420.95

15 133,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,000,000.00 3.9918346   14,545.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,545.59

16 (9,000,000.00) 124,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124,000,000.00 3.9340258   13,364.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,364.91

17 124,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124,000,000.00 3.9340258   13,364.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,364.91

18 124,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124,000,000.00 3.9340258   13,364.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,364.91

19 124,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124,000,000.00 3.9340258   13,364.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,364.91

20 (4,000,000.00) 120,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120,000,000.00 3.9526712   12,995.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,995.08

21 120,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120,000,000.00 4.1465700   13,632.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,632.56
22 (3,000,000.00) 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9363408   12,617.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,617.86

23 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9306871   12,599.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,599.74

24 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9306871   12,599.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,599.74

25 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9306871   12,599.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,599.74

26 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9240373   12,578.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,578.42

27 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 4.0409842   12,953.29 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,953.29

28 117,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 117,000,000.00 3.9045055   12,515.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,515.81

29 8,000,000.00 125,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000,000.00 3.9244561   13,439.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,439.92

30 125,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000,000.00 3.7698110   12,910.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,910.31

31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(29,000,000.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000,000.00 433,301.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 433,301.67 Accrued total for month

(29,000,000.00) 133,354,838.71 NOTE 1  

154,000,000.00  100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%
Pooled Interest Activity 125,000,000.00

 

446,435.19 INTEREST ACCRUED @ EOM 446,435.19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 446,435.19 Actual-rounding

(506,920.56) INTEREST RECEIPTED CURR MONTH 506,920.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 506,920.56 Actually received

506,920.56 INTEREST ACCRUED @ PRIOR EOM

446,435.19 INTEREST EARNED THROUGH EOM-NOT COLLECTED (POOLED ONLY)

NOTE: Yield for STIP for Nov 2025 - 4.214%

NOTE: Yield for STIP for Dec 2025 - 4.087%

NOTE: Yield for STIP for Jan 2026 - 3.964%

NOTE: Yield for STIP for FY23 - 3.712%

NOTE: Yield for STIP for FY24 - 5.386%

NOTE: Yield for STIP for FY25 - 4.715%

YELLOWSTONE COUNTY INVESTMENT POOL

STIP INVESTMENTS & SD7 Segregated Bond Proceeds Account

January, 2026

8



    YELLOWSTONE COUNTY

NONPOOLED (SEPARATE) INVESTMENTS - SD#2  (DEBT SERVICE SINKING FUND & RESERVED)

January, 2026

DEPOSITORY FACE/    UNAMORTIZED YIELD/
INVESTMENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENT MATURITY PRINCIPAL PREMIUM/ ACCRUED INVESTMENT EFFECTIVE PURCHASE COUPON COUPON INTEREST

TYPE INSTITUTION DATE TERM DATE AMOUNT(DISCOUNT) INTEREST BALANCE RATE PRICE RATE DATES COLLECTIONS Notes
---------------------- --------------------------------------- ----------------- ------------- ---------------- ------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- ------------------------- ------------------ ------------------- --------------- ------------------ --------------------------- ------------------

RESERVED FOR DEBT SERVICE SINKING FUND

CDARS WSB-HS QSCB Series 2010  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 6,630,864.86 0.00 0.00 6,630,864.86 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL High

CDARS WSB-El QSCB Series 2010A  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 2,116,977.96 0.00 0.00 2,116,977.96 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL Elem
CDARS WSB-ElQZAB Series 2010B  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 1,749,568.56 0.00 0.00 1,749,568.56 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL Elem
CDARS WSB-HS QECB Series 2012  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 2,456,394.26 0.00 0.00 2,456,394.26 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL High

CDARS WSB-QZAB Series 2012A  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 2,950,272.48 0.00 0.00 2,950,272.48 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL Elem
CDARS WSB-QECB Series 2012C  06/12/25 1 yr  06/11/26 2,959,046.61 0.00 0.00 2,959,046.61 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL Elem

  SUBTOTAL - SEPARATE INVESTMENTS -DEBT SERVICE 18,863,124.73 0.00 0.00 18,863,124.73

BOND SALE PROCEEDS

Daily

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- -------------------------
TOTAL INVESTABLE CASH: 18,863,124.73 0.00 0.00 18,863,124.73  

============== ========= =========== ==============
18,863,124.73 cross foot

0.00
18,863,124.73 Daily Activity

0.00

9,775,865.61 Elem
9,087,259.12 HS

Debt Service Sinking Fund rates and maturities confirmed by B. Solberg at Western Security Bank 18,863,124.73 Total

    YELLOWSTONE COUNTY

NONPOOLED (SEPARATE) INVESTMENTS - SD#24  (DEBT SERVICE SINKING FUND & RESERVED)

January, 2026

DEPOSITORY FACE/    UNAMORTIZED YIELD/
INVESTMENT FINANCIAL INVESTMENT MATURITY PRINCIPAL PREMIUM/ ACCRUED INVESTMENT EFFECTIVE PURCHASE COUPON COUPON INTEREST

TYPE INSTITUTION DATE TERM DATE AMOUNT(DISCOUNT) INTEREST BALANCE RATE PRICE RATE DATES COLLECTIONS Notes
---------------------- --------------------------------------- ----------------- ------------- ---------------- ------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- ------------------------- ------------------ ------------------- --------------- ----------------------------------------------- ------------------
INVESTMENTS - SD#24  (RESERVED)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INVESTMENTS - SD#24  (DEBT SERVICE SINKING FUND)

CDARS WESTERN SEC. BANK  06/12/25  1 year  06/11/26 9,174,201.68 0.00 0.00 9,174,201.68 3.000% 100.000000 3.000% ANNUAL (1)

SUBTOTAL - SEPARATE INVESTMENTS 9,174,201.68 0.00 0.00 9,174,201.68

------------------------- ----------------- -------------------- -------------------------
TOTAL INVESTABLE CASH: 9,174,201.68 0.00 0.00 9,174,201.68  

============== ========= =========== ==============
9,174,201.68 cross foot

0.00
9,174,201.68 Daily Activity 

0.00

Note1:  Sinking fund for debt service.  Bank combined two investments now that both termed in 2020, and were re-invested for 1 yr going forward.

Debt Service Sinking Fund rates and maturities confirmed by B. Solberg at Western Security Bank

9



   
B.O.C.C. Regular        
Meeting Date: 02/24/2026  
Title: Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc.
Submitted For: Monica Plecker, Public Works Director 
Submitted By: Trasee Field, Senior Secretary

TOPIC:
Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc.

BACKGROUND:
Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for Geotechnical Engineering Services. Infiltration testing at
King Ave East and Riverside Road.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
File

Attachments
Contract 



















Reference Number: P26265005

Page 1 of 2 Rev. 11-22

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
This AGREEMENT is between Yellowstone County MT (“Client”) and Terracon Consultants, Inc. (“Consultant”) for Services to be provided by Consultant
for Client on the Proposed Infiltration Testing project (“Project”), as described in Consultant’s Proposal dated 01/26/2026 (“Proposal”), including but not
limited to the Project Information section, unless the Project is otherwise described in Exhibit A to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is incorporated
into this Agreement).
1. Scope of Services. The scope of Consultant’s services is described in the Proposal, including but not limited to the Scope of Services section

(“Services”), unless Services are otherwise described in Exhibit B to this Agreement (which section or exhibit is incorporated into this Agreement).
Portions of the Services may be subcontracted. Consultant’s Services do not include the investigation or detection of, nor do recommendations in
Consultant’s reports address the presence or prevention of biological pollutants (e.g., mold, fungi, bacteria, viruses, or their byproducts) or occupant
safety issues, such as vulnerability to natural disasters, terrorism, or violence. If Services include purchase of software, Client will execute a separate
software license agreement. Consultant’s findings, opinions, and recommendations are based solely upon data and information obtained by and
furnished to Consultant at the time of the Services.

2. Acceptance/ Termination. Client agrees that execution of this Agreement is a material element of the consideration Consultant requires to
execute the Services, and if Services are initiated by Consultant prior to execution of this Agreement as an accommodation for Client at Client’s
request, both parties shall consider that commencement of Services constitutes formal acceptance of all terms and conditions of this Agreement.
Additional terms and conditions may be added or changed only by written amendment to this Agreement signed by both parties. In the event Client
uses a purchase order or other form to administer this Agreement, the use of such form shall be for convenience purposes only and any additional or
conflicting terms it contains are stricken. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written consent of the other party.  Either
party may terminate this Agreement or the Services upon written notice to the other. In such case, Consultant shall be paid costs incurred and fees
earned to the date of termination plus reasonable costs of closing the Project.

3. Change Orders. Client may request changes to the scope of Services by altering or adding to the Services to be performed. If Client so requests,
Consultant will return to Client a statement (or supplemental proposal) of the change setting forth an adjustment to the Services and fees for the
requested changes. Following Client’s review, Client shall provide written acceptance. If Client does not follow these procedures, but instead directs,
authorizes, or permits Consultant to perform changed or additional work, the Services are changed accordingly and Consultant will be paid for this work
according to the fees stated or its current fee schedule. If project conditions change materially from those observed at the site or described to
Consultant at the time of proposal, Consultant is entitled to a change order equitably adjusting its Services and fee.

4. Compensation and Terms of Payment. Client shall pay compensation for the Services performed at the fees stated in the Proposal, including
but not limited to the Compensation section, unless fees are otherwise stated in Exhibit C to this Agreement (which section or Exhibit is incorporated
into this Agreement). If not stated in either, fees will be according to Consultant’s current fee schedule. Fee schedules are valid for the calendar year in
which they are issued. Fees do not include sales tax.  Client will pay applicable sales tax as required by law. Consultant may invoice Client at least
monthly and payment is due upon receipt of invoice. Client shall notify Consultant in writing, at the address below, within 15 days of the date of the
invoice if Client objects to any portion of the charges on the invoice, and shall promptly pay the undisputed portion. Client shall pay a finance fee of
1.5% per month, but not exceeding the maximum rate allowed by law, for all unpaid amounts 30 days or older. Client agrees to pay all collection-related
costs that Consultant incurs, including attorney fees. Consultant may suspend Services for lack of timely payment. It is the responsibility of Client to
determine whether federal, state, or local prevailing wage requirements apply and to notify Consultant if prevailing wages apply.  If it is later determined
that prevailing wages apply, and Consultant was not previously notified by Client, Client agrees to pay the prevailing wage from that point forward, as
well as a retroactive payment adjustment to bring previously paid amounts in line with prevailing wages.  Client also agrees to defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless Consultant from any alleged violations made by any governmental agency regulating prevailing wage activity for failing to pay prevailing
wages, including the payment of any fines or penalties.

5. Third Party Reliance. This Agreement and the Services provided are for Consultant and Client’s sole benefit and exclusive use with no third party
beneficiaries intended. Reliance upon the Services and any work product is limited to Client, and is not intended for third parties other than those who
have executed Consultant’s reliance agreement, subject to the prior approval of Consultant and Client.

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. CLIENT AND CONSULTANT HAVE EVALUATED THE RISKS AND REWARDS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
PROJECT, INCLUDING CONSULTANT’S FEE RELATIVE TO THE RISKS ASSUMED, AND AGREE TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN OF THE
ASSOCIATED RISKS.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE TOTAL AGGREGATE LIABILITY OF CONSULTANT (AND ITS
RELATED CORPORATIONS AND EMPLOYEES) TO CLIENT AND THIRD PARTIES GRANTED RELIANCE IS LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF
$10,000 OR CONSULTANT'S FEE, FOR ANY AND ALL INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, OR EXPENSES (INCLUDING ATTORNEY
AND EXPERT FEES) ARISING OUT OF CONSULTANT’S SERVICES OR THIS AGREEMENT.  PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT
AND UPON WRITTEN REQUEST FROM CLIENT, CONSULTANT MAY NEGOTIATE A HIGHER LIMITATION FOR ADDITIONAL
CONSIDERATION IN THE FORM OF A SURCHARGE TO BE ADDED TO THE AMOUNT STATED IN THE COMPENSATION SECTION OF THE
PROPOSAL.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL APPLY REGARDLESS OF AVAILABLE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERAGE,
CAUSE(S), OR THE THEORY OF LIABILITY, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, INDEMNITY, OR OTHER RECOVERY.  THIS LIMITATION SHALL NOT
APPLY TO THE EXTENT THE DAMAGE IS PAID UNDER CONSULTANT’S COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY.

7. Indemnity/Statute of Limitations. Consultant and Client shall indemnify and hold harmless the other and their respective employees from and
against legal liability for claims, losses, damages, and expenses to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be
caused by their negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are legally determined to be caused by the
joint or concurrent negligence of Consultant and Client, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own negligence under comparative fault
principles.   Neither party shall have a duty to defend the other party, and no duty to defend is hereby created by this indemnity provision and such duty
is explicitly waived under this Agreement.  Causes of action arising out of Consultant’s Services or this Agreement regardless of cause(s) or the theory
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery shall be deemed to have accrued and the applicable statute of limitations shall commence
to run not later than the date of Consultant’s substantial completion of Services on the project.

8. Warranty. Consultant will perform the Services in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the
profession currently practicing under similar conditions in the same locale. EXCEPT FOR THE STANDARD OF CARE PREVIOUSLY STATED,
CONSULTANT MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, RELATING TO CONSULTANT’S SERVICES AND
CONSULTANT DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR WARRANTIES IMPOSED BY LAW, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

9. Insurance. Consultant represents that it now carries, and will continue to carry: (i) workers’ compensation insurance in accordance with the laws of
the states having jurisdiction over Consultant’s employees who are engaged in the Services, and employer’s liability insurance ($1,000,000); (ii)
commercial general liability insurance ($2,000,000 occ / $4,000,000 agg); (iii) automobile liability insurance ($2,000,000 B.I. and P.D. combined single
limit); (iv) umbrella liability ($5,000,000 occ / agg); and (v) professional liability insurance ($1,000,000 claim / agg). Certificates of insurance will be
provided upon request. Client and Consultant shall waive subrogation against the other party on all general liability and property coverage.



Reference Number: P26265005

Page 2 of 2 Rev. 11-22

10. CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR LOSS OF PROFITS OR REVENUE; LOSS OF
USE OR OPPORTUNITY; LOSS OF GOOD WILL; COST OF SUBSTITUTE FACILITIES, GOODS, OR SERVICES; COST OF CAPITAL; OR FOR
ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, PUNITIVE, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES.

11. Dispute Resolution. Client shall not be entitled to assert a Claim against Consultant based on any theory of professional negligence unless and
until Client has obtained the written opinion from a registered, independent, and reputable engineer, architect, or geologist that Consultant has violated
the standard of care applicable to Consultant’s performance of the Services. Client shall provide this opinion to Consultant and the parties shall
endeavor to resolve the dispute within 30 days, after which Client may pursue its remedies at law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
according to Kansas law.

12. Subsurface Explorations. Subsurface conditions throughout the site may vary from those depicted on logs of discrete borings, test pits, or other
exploratory services. Client understands Consultant’s layout of boring and test locations is approximate and that Consultant may deviate a reasonable
distance from those locations. Consultant will take reasonable precautions to reduce damage to the site when performing Services; however, Client
accepts that invasive services such as drilling or sampling may damage or alter the site. Site restoration is not provided unless specifically included in
the Services.

13. Testing and Observations. Client understands that testing and observation are discrete sampling procedures, and that such procedures indicate
conditions only at the depths, locations, and times the procedures were performed. Consultant will provide test results and opinions based on tests and
field observations only for the work tested. Client understands that testing and observation are not continuous or exhaustive, and are conducted to
reduce - not eliminate - project risk. Client shall cause all tests and inspections of the site, materials, and Services performed by Consultant to be timely
and properly scheduled in order for the Services to be performed in accordance with the plans, specifications, contract documents, and Consultant’s
recommendations. No claims for loss or damage or injury shall be brought against Consultant by Client or any third party unless all tests and
inspections have been so performed and Consultant’s recommendations have been followed. Unless otherwise stated in the Proposal, Client assumes
sole responsibility for determining whether the quantity and the nature of Services ordered by Client is adequate and sufficient for Client’s intended
purpose. Client is responsible (even if delegated to contractor) for requesting services, and notifying and scheduling Consultant so Consultant can
perform these Services. Consultant is not responsible for damages caused by Services not performed due to a failure to request or schedule
Consultant’s Services.  Consultant shall not be responsible for the quality and completeness of Client’s contractor’s work or their adherence to the
project documents, and Consultant’s performance of testing and observation services shall not relieve Client’s contractor in any way from its
responsibility for defects discovered in its work, or create a warranty or guarantee. Consultant will not supervise or direct the work performed by Client’s
contractor or its subcontractors and is not responsible for their means and methods. The extension of unit prices with quantities to establish a total
estimated cost does not guarantee a maximum cost to complete the Services. The quantities, when given, are estimates based on contract documents
and schedules made available at the time of the Proposal. Since schedule, performance, production, and charges are directed and/or controlled by
others, any quantity extensions must be considered as estimated and not a guarantee of maximum cost.

14. Sample Disposition, Affected Materials, and Indemnity. Samples are consumed in testing or disposed of upon completion of the testing
procedures (unless stated otherwise in the Services). Client shall furnish or cause to be furnished to Consultant all documents and information known
or available to Client that relate to the identity, location, quantity, nature, or characteristic of any hazardous waste, toxic, radioactive, or contaminated
materials (“Affected Materials”) at or near the site, and shall immediately transmit new, updated, or revised information as it becomes available. Client
agrees that Consultant is not responsible for the disposition of Affected Materials unless specifically provided in the Services, and that Client is
responsible for directing such disposition. In no event shall Consultant be required to sign a hazardous waste manifest or take title to any Affected
Materials. Client shall have the obligation to make all spill or release notifications to appropriate governmental agencies. The Client agrees that
Consultant neither created nor contributed to the creation or existence of any Affected Materials conditions at the site and Consultant shall not be responsible
for any claims, losses, or damages allegedly arising out of Consultant’s performance of Services hereunder, or for any claims against Consultant as a
generator, disposer, or arranger of Affected Materials under federal, state, or local law or ordinance.

15. Ownership of Documents. Work product, such as reports, logs, data, notes, or calculations, prepared by Consultant shall remain Consultant’s
property. Proprietary concepts, systems, and ideas developed during performance of the Services shall remain the sole property of Consultant. Files
shall be maintained in general accordance with Consultant’s document retention policies and practices.

16. Utilities. Unless otherwise stated in the Proposal, Client shall provide the location and/or arrange for the marking of private utilities and subterranean
structures. Consultant shall take reasonable precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean structures or utilities. Consultant shall not be
responsible for damage to subterranean structures or utilities that are not called to Consultant’s attention, are not correctly marked, including by a utility
locate service, or are incorrectly shown on the plans furnished to Consultant.

17. Site Access and Safety. Client shall secure all necessary site related approvals, permits, licenses, and consents necessary to commence and
complete the Services and will execute any necessary site access agreement.  Consultant will be responsible for supervision and site safety measures
for its own employees, but shall not be responsible for the supervision or health and safety precautions for any third parties, including Client’s
contractors, subcontractors, or other parties present at the site. In addition, Consultant retains the right to stop work without penalty at any time
Consultant believes it is in the best interests of Consultant’s employees or subcontractors to do so in order to reduce the risk of exposure to unsafe site
conditions. Client agrees it will respond quickly to all requests for information made by Consultant related to Consultant’s pre-task planning and risk
assessment processes.

Consultant: Terracon Consultants, Inc. Client: Yellowstone County MT

By: Date: 1/23/2026 By: Date:

Name/Title: Travis L Goracke / Senior Geotechnical
Engineer

Name/Title: Jay Anderson, P.E. / Deputy Public Works
Director

Address: 2110 Overland Ave Ste 124 Address: PO Box 35000
Billings, MT 59102-6440 Billings, MT 59107-5000

Phone: (406) 656-3072 Fax: Phone: (406) 254-7926 Fax:
Email: Travis.Goracke@terracon.com Email: janderson@yellowstonecountymt.gov




















	Agenda
	AI 16072 February Recognition
	AI 16097 Bid Opening for Central Avenue & 48th Street West Intersection Improvement
	AI 16098 Bid Opening for Public Works Fifth Wheel Truck
	AI 16088 Res. 26-11 to Appoint a Board of Viewers for the Abandonment of Beaver Drive
	       ATT_Res. 26-11_Board of Viewers_Combined
	AI 16089 Board Appointments
	       ATT_Nicholas Steen
	       ATT_George Warmer
	       ATT_Brian Brown
	       ATT_Jennifer Sayler
	       ATT_Dana Bishop
	AI 16091 Board Openings
	       ATT_Board Openings
	AI 16083 Request to Expend - Facilities - Cell Phone for New Maintenance Tech
	       ATT_RTE - Facilities Cell Phone
	AI 16085 Disposition of Assets - Miscellaneous Equipment
	       ATT_Disposition of Assets 2.24.26
	       ATT_Metra - Disposition of Assets Sheets
	Amphitheater  Strg Shed Disposition
	Disposition of Assets - Meritage POS
	Disposition of Assets - Shed & Stage
	Disposition of Assets -Remodels

	AI 16087 2026 DNRC RRG Project Grant Application
	       ATT_BBWA Grant Sponsor Request
	AI 16090 Finance Contract - Extension Building - Cucancic Construction
	       ATT_Cucancic Contract - Exetnsion Bldg
	Yellowstone County Extension Phase II drawings.pdf
	a7.1.pdf
	Yellowstone County Extension Phase II drawings.pdf
	A8.2.pdf
	a8.1.pdf
	renovation plan.pdf
	A1.1 Main Floor Plan.pdf
	T2.pdf
	T1- title and code.pdf



	AI 16095 Window Tint - Commissioners Board Room
	AI 16105 Change Order #2 - Bauer Construction - Metra Skybox Reno
	       ATT_COR 2 Corridor and Lobby Paint Add
	AI 16092 MOU with City of Laurel for GIS Services
	       ATT_GIS Laurel MOU
	AI 16103 Health Equity Agreement for COBRA
	       ATT_Health Equity Agreement for COBRA
	AI 16102 PARS
	       ATT_PARS
	       ATT_PAR1
	AI 16100 Board Minutes
	       ATT_Yellowstone Conservation Board Minutes
	AI 16081 Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2/12/26
	       ATT_Tax Appeal Board Minutes 2_12_26
	AI 16101 Detailed Cash Investment Report
	       ATT_January Detailed Cash Investment Report
	AI 16096 Contract with Terracon Consultants, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract

